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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Privi Organics India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Privi Organics India
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone Ind AS
financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone [nd AS financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thersunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement

,
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Privi Organics India Limited

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
anditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause an
entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

fn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 42 to the financial statements. During the period ended 31 March 2017,
as per the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme approved by the National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT) Order, the Company has credited Rs 35,573.76 lakhs, being the excess of book
value of assets over the book value of liabilities and consideration for equity shares issued, vested
under the Scheme, to the general reserve. Had such accounting treatment not been specified under
the NCLT Order, under the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) adopted by the Company with
effect from 1 April 2017, restated for the previous period’s figures under Ind AS, the assets and
liabilities would need to be fair valued and the excess of fair value of consideration directly
discharged by the parent company (to be recognized as contribution from the parent directly in
equity) over the fair value of net assets acquired (i.e fair value of assets acquired less fair value of
liabilities (including consideration for equity shares issued)) would be recognised as goodwill and in
reverse case would be recognised in equity as capital reserve. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

y



B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Privi Organics India Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

1.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(&)

"

(2)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 38 to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.



B SR & Associates LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Privi Organics India Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

iv.  The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8™ November 2016 to
30" December 2016 have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial
year ended 31 March 2018. However amounts as appearing in the audited
Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017 have

been disclosed.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 11623 1W/W-100024

ﬁ.SV

Adwait Morwekar

Mumbai Partner
8 May 2013 Membership No: 110223
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Privi Organics India Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2018

(Referred to in our report of even date)

1.

"
1.

iv.

vi.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two years.
In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

©) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been
physically verified by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties at
the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods-in-transit,
subsequent goods receipt have been verified. The discrepancies noticed during the physical
verification of inventories as compared to book records were not material and has been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(a) The Company has granted unsecured interest free loan that are repayable on demand
to one of its wholly owned subsidiary covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. The maximum amount outstanding during the period was
Rs. 1066.12 Lakhs and the year-end balance of such loans was Rs. Nil.

(L) [n case of loans granted to the wholly owned subsidiary listed in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, the terms of arrangement did not stipulate
any schedule for the repayment of principal and the loan was repayable on demand.
We are informed that the Company had not demanded repayment of any such loan
during the year and the said loan was converted into equity during the year.
Accordingly paragraph 3(iii}b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company in
respect of repayment of principal.

(c) There is no amount of loans granted to the Company listed in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, which are outstanding for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, except in one instance of loan made to a wholly owned
subsidiary as specified in clause (iii) (a) above.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the central government for maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of products manufactured by the Company, and are
of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of cost records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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Privi Organics India Limited

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2018
(Continued)

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Goods and Service tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, [ncome-tax,
Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
Service tax, Value added tax, Goods and Service tax and Sales tax which have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
Income tax, duty of Excise and duty of Customs have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Date of
statue the dues (Rs.) which the dispute is payment
amount pending
relates
The Income Tax Income tax 3.32lakhs 2005 - 2006 CIT Appeals Not yet paid
Act, 1961
The Income Tax Income tax 668.25 lakhs 2010 -2011 CIT Appeals Not yet paid
Act, 1961
The Customs Custom duty 9.52 lakhs 1998 — 1999 CESTAT Not yet paid
Act, 1962
The Central Excise duty 15.94 lakhs  2007-2011  Commissioner Not yet paid
Excise Act, 1944 {Appeals)
The Income Tax Income Tax 316.12  2014-2015  Commissioner Not Yet Paid
Act 1961 Lakhs ( Appeals)
The Income Tax Income Tax 31.21 Lakhs 2015-2016 CIT Appeals Not Yet Paid
Act 1961
viii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks, government or to any financial institutions.
The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

ix, According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). The money
raised by term loans were applied for which they are raised.

Y
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Privi Organics India Limited

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2018
(Continued)

X.

xi.

Xii.

Xiil.

xiv.

XV.

XVi.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no matertal fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has
been paid / provided for in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act, and the details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

For B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 116231 W/W-100024

ﬁ.gw

Adwait Morwekar

Mumbai Partner
8 May 2018 Membership No: 110223
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Privi Organics India Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Privi Organics India
Limited (“the Company”™) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India” (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Privi Organics India Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2018
(Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountomts
Firm’s Registration No: 116231 W/W-100024

n-Sw

Adwait Morwekar

Mumbai Partner
8 May 2018 Membership No: 110223



Privi Organics India Limited

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

ASSETS

Noo-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
[ntangible assets
[nvestments in subsidiaries and associates
Financial assets

Investments

Loans

Other financial assels
Mon current tax assets (net}
Other non-current assets
Total non—current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financinl assets
lovesiments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above
Crher financial assets
Other current assets
Total current asgets

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Deferred tax tabilities (net}
Total non-current liabilities
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Other curvent liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Total curreni linbilities

Toial equity and liabilitles

Notes to the financial staterents
Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral parl of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date atiached

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chuartered Accountants
Firm's Registration MNo: 116231W/W-100024

s

Partner
Mernbership No: 110223

Mumbai
Date : May 08, 2018

As at As al
Nove March 31,2018 March 31,2017
4 31,975.48 28.358.24
4 2,901.51 1,620.57
3 622,01 310.86
6 1,502.21 953,41
7 - 19.57
& - 24531
¢ 457.08 1,015.97
1,209.08 1,179.32

1] 541,94 1,698.56
40,2094 35,401 81

1 19,055.52 21,061.08
7 300,17 54.03
12 20,824,57 16,732.71
13 981.45 507.83
14 1,129.37 237384
¢ 959.04 747.40
15 3,169,435 2,004.90
46,419,357 4348179

86,628.98 78,883.60

1] 1.00 1.00

i7 40,004.14 37,507.51
40,095.14 37,508.51

i8 580719 4.576.19
19 793.15 675.55
20 1,479.75 958.65
8,170.19 6,210.39

i8 17,659.09 18,434 17
21 12,100.26 10,065 66
22 8,084.62 5.812.50
23 196,36 30211
i9 60,78 49.16
262,54 501.10

38,363.65 35,164.70

86,628.98 78,881.60

3o 47
2

( ) For and on behalf of the Board yr Directors of

| 1 { Privi OrganicyIndin Limited
I oo
\\ W\ / M
AR W
| /W

Mahesh Babani.- D. B. Rao

Managing Direcior N Executive Director

DIN: Q0051162 | \ DIN: 00356218
LY .

\ o)

vy
llﬁ?i?ll‘)mmuria

Company Secretary




Privi Organics India Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: [ndian Rupees in lakhs}

Revenue from operations
Other operating income
Other income

Total income

Exptnses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Excise duty

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax chargef (credit)
Income tax expense
Profit for the year {(A)
Other comprehensive income
1tems that will not be reclassified to profii or loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans
Income tax related to above

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B)

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+D)

Earnings per equity share: nominal value of sharc Rs.10/- each (March 31, 2017: Rs, 10/-)

Basic and diluted {Rs.}

Naotes to the financial statements
Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No: 116231 W/W-100024

e

Adwait Morwekar
Partner
Memberstip No: 110223

Mutmbai
Dratc ; May 08, 2018

Note Year ended Period ended
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
24 77,008.24 42,285 64
25 1,016.65 52017
26 1,597.70 1,028.77
79,622.59 43,834.58
27 47,393.82 27,148 17
28 2,982.47 {764.05)
869.83 2,042.46
29 4,127.40 2,252.57
30 1,818.42 1,226.14
3l 3,813.52 2,244.57
32 14,203.82 7,395 76
75,209.28 41,546.62
4,413.31 228796
999.68 46503
522.83 (131.37
1,522.51 333,66
2,890.80 1,954.30
{5.01) (31.42)
1.73 10.87
(3.28) (20.55)
2,887.52 1,933.75
40 28,908.00 19,543 00
31047
2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Privi Orga ni7’lm:|ia Limited

Matlesh Baba/ U D. B. Rao
Managing Diteior Executive Director

DIN: 00051162 ’ DIN' 00356218

Rt
R':L\'nlla'_'ﬁyéﬂun‘iu

Company Secretary



Privi Organics India Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Unrealised gain foreign exchange differences
Fair value {gain)/loss on Investments
Dividend income
[nterest income
Finance costs
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Provision for doubtful advances
Fair valuation of borrowings
Operating cash flow belore working capital changes

Adjustment for:

(Increase) in trade receivables and loans

Decrease in inventories

{Increase) in other assets

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables and other current liabilities and provisions

Cash generated from operatation
{ncome taxes paid
Net Cash from operating activity {A|

B Cash Mow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of investments {net}
{Investment} /maturity of fixed deposits
Dividend income
Interest received
Net Cash {(used in) investing activities

C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares {including securities premium})
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings {net)
Proces from workking capital loan
Dividend paid including DDT
Interest paid
Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning end of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ACQUIRED ON PURCHASE OF BUSINESS
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on demerger pursuant to scheme of arrangement

Cash acquired subsequent to demerger (Refer Note 42)

Cash and cash equivalents at end o!' the year (refer Note 13)

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
4,413.31 228796
3,313.52 2,244 57
(175.51) 510.19
(3.87) {32.79)
(0.35) (0.07)
(123.56) {160.62})
1,695.92 1,15093
{1.60) (13%
36.15 -
15.68 (25.89)
9,669.69 595265
(3,788.28) (891D
2,005.56 376 14
(960.47) {571.32)
3,216.80 {2,919.07)
473.61 {3,203.42)
10,143.30 2,749.24
(1,267.96) (1,331.32)
8,875.34 1,417 92
{6,754.46) (5,788.26)
5.50 2353
{1,771.60) (197 1)
1,875.75 303.78
0.35 007
123.56 160.62
{6,520.90} {5,497 99)
= 1.00
4,000.00 (212 .46)
{3,055.40)
(861.03) (3,658 13)
- (4,960.44)
(300.89)
(1,663.50) (1,236.89)
(1,380.82) {10,066 92)
473.62 (14,146.99)
507.83
= 126 86
- 14,528 00
981.45 507 83
\§
.r",.l
!



Privi Organics India Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Note A : The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method" as set out in [nd AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'

Note B : Reconcillation of net debts

Particulars

falunce as on | April 2017

Laan taken during the current year
Repayment duning the current year
Foreign exchange gain or loss
Tmpact of effective interest rate

Closing balamce

Long Term Borroowing  Short Term Borrowings

7.63) 62 18,434 17
4,000.00 -
(3.055.36) {861.03)

1259 9595
15 68
8,604 53 |7.659.09

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accovintants
Firm's Registration No: 11623 1'W/W-100024
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Adwait Morwekar
Pariner
Membership No; 110223

Mumbai
Date : May 08, 2018

Managing

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Privi Organics India Limited

D. B. Rao
Executive Director
DIN: 00356218
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Privi Organics India Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
Jfor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

A, Equity share capital

Azt As sl
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1.00
Changes in equity shere capital during the year - | .00
Balance at the end of the reporting period LM 1.00
B. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Total

General Reserve Retatned Enroings

Total comprehensive Income for the period from Sth Juky 2016 to March 31,2017

Profit for the year - 1,954,30 1,954,30
Other comprehensive income {net of 1ax) - {20.55) {20.55)
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year - 1,933.75 1,933.75

Transaciion with owners directly recorded in equity

Addition to general reserve on account of demerger- Reler note 42 3587376 - 3557376
3557076 - 35,573.T6
Balance a3 at March 31, 2017 3557276 1,933.75 37,507.51

Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018

Profit for the year - 2,890 80 2,850 80
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - (3.28) (328)
Total comprebensive imcome for the year - 2,887.52 2,887.52

Contribution and distribution to the owners

Dividend of Rs 2,500 per share for the period ended March 31, 2017 - 25000 15000
Dividend distribution tax on dividend . 30.89 50.89
Balance a3 st March 31,2018 35,573.76 4,520.38 40,094,014

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis Privi Organics India Limited
Firm's Registration No: [ 16231 W/W-100024 /

[ / )
f
oS et — | It
. = - _,-f ’II f
Adwait Morwekar Mithesh BabV f.' D. B. Rao
Partner Managing DireCror ‘ “vecutive Director

Membership No; 110223 DIN: 00051162 \\I.JIN' 00356218

\! !
Mumba 3 g Raméi‘%uria
Date . May 08, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Seoretary




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

{(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1 Corporate Information

Privi Organics India Limited (Privi', or 'the Company') incorporated on 08 J uly 2016 under
the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 is a public company domiciled in India. The
Group is primarily engaged in the manufacture, supply and export of aroma chemicals.
The Group's manufacturing units are located at Mahad and Jagadia. Privi's in-house
Research and Development centre has been accorded recognition by the Department of
Scientific and Industrial Research.

2 Significant accounting policies

i Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company’s financial statements up to and for the period ended March 31, 2017 were
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006, notified
under Section 133 of the Act (‘Indian GAAP’ or ‘IGAAP’). As these are the first financial
statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101
‘First -time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’ has been applied. An explanation of
how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 3. The financial
statements under Ind AS were authorised for issue by the Company’s board of Directors on
8 May 2018.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
derivative financial instruments and financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). These financial statements are
presented in Lakhs of Indian rupees and rounded off to two decimal values unless
otherwise stated.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods
presented in these financial statements.

ii, Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future period affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates
and assumptions thattaye 18 mestsignificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assetsand. liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the
following notes: [/, /i Ao\ '

Mam||,|, I! W, i M
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

ii.

v,

(a) Measurement of defined benefit obligations for key actuarial assumptions - Note 35

(b) Recognition of deferred tax assets - Note 20

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c) itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a) it is expected to be settled in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(¢) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counter party, resu It in its settlement by
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. Current liabilities include current
portion of non-current financial liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle ?} So¢,

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 1]_1"53’_1'? ar
realization in cash or cash equivalents.

| %1 Nlﬂ 4 Gompound,\ -0y
|11”‘- *’% s e m, } *
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment =
are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairments, if
any. Historical cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to

acquisition and installation. Indirect expenses during construction period, which are /LAA/

Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE ?) and depreciation

required to bring the asset in the condition for its intended use by the management and are
directly atiributable to bringing the asset to its position, are a!so/"capitaiizcd. Lg%l
L Iy -,



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Iy Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) and depreciation (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the year end.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost of property plant
and equipment, net of residual values, over their estimated useful lives as per the useful life
prescribed in schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of the following class
of assets where the useful life is based on technical evaluation of the management:

Asset Class Years
Plant and Machinery 10
Furniture & Fixtures 16
Office Equipment 10
Vehicle 11
Computer 6

Fixtures in leasehold premises are amortized over the primary period of the lease or useful
life of the fixtures, whichever is lowet,

Depreciation on additions / deletions during the year is provided from the month in which
the asset is capitalized up to the month in which the asset is disposed off.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets required under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives (not being greater than the useful life envisaged in Schedule II of
Companies Act, 2013) unless it is reasonably certain that company will obtain ownership
by the end of lease term, in which case the depreciation rates applicable for similar assets
owned by the company are applied.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if tlu, o
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. [/ 2/

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with LdIl}’II]L, "ﬂaﬁ,ﬁfﬂ,ﬁ!”‘"

[ o]l
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses). _ __"-.%M"ﬂw::;:aﬂoun /&

v, Intangible assets and amortisation oAz

Intangible assets with finite useful life are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated
depreciation/ amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties and ;’L
other incidental expenses related to acquisition and other inci enldl expenses. ["{

ﬁ“t/



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sor the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2

v

vi.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

v -\‘E\_} Intangible assets and amortization (Continued)

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of respective intangible assets.

Asset Class Years
Computers and Soft wares 3to 6 Years
Rights of Sale of Products 5 Years
Development Rights 5 Years

With regard to internally generated intangible assets:

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of development of new
products or gaining new technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

Capital expenditure on research and development is capitalized and depreciated as per
accounting policy mentioned above. Revenue expenditure is charged off in the year in
which it is incurred.

Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products or processes. Development expenditure is capitalized only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to
and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure
capitalized includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable borrowing
costs (in the same manner as in the case of tangible fixed assets). Other development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised in profit or loss over their estimated useful lives, from the
date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of
economic benefits of the asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of assels

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset or a group of assets {cash generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or a group of assets.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fict. _ Ay

selling price. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discountgd 1o

their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments af

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. If such recoverable

amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which'the .
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to s

tecoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed

historical cost.

and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subjecf to a maximum of depreciablc\v
\

_,.,ff(;\v




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2

vif,

viii,

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate
applicable to the respective borrowing. Borrowing costs include interest costs measured at
EIR and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings (other than long
term foreign currency borrowings) to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
interest cost.

Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset
up to the date of capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost of the assets.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period which they are
incurred.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the balance
sheet date are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resuliant
exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Financial Instruments

a. Financial assets
Initial recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three

categories:
Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at the amortised cost if ft'nml}
the following conditions are met: \\22

— The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets For e,

collecting contractual cash flows, and

—  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
r

outstanding. .
JON
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2

ix

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

a. Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”)

A financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income if both the following conditions are met :

— The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

—  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to P&L. The company did not have any financial assets at
FVTOCI during the current year as well as previous year.

Financial assets at fair value through Profit and loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial
assets which does not meet the criteria of categorizing it at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI is classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily detrecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
balance sheet) when:

—  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

— The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or hias
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material de!ay'

io a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Compan}
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks\and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transl"cn]‘ed asselto lhE extent of the

N>
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
ix Financial Instruments (Continued)

a. Financial assets (Continued)
De-recognition (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In view of its past experience of having insignificant impairment bad-debts / write-
offs and based on management’s estimate considering its portfolio of customers, this
trend would continue for the foreseeable future, the Company has determined that
significant impairment of Financial assets is not required to be recognised based on
Expected Credit Loss model.

b. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
amortised cost and financial liabilities at FVTPL. Derivative liabilities are classified as
FVTPL. All financia! liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes,

derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated-as,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. I“(LE]’)D M J
derivative instruments, the Company has not designated any financial liability as\at,

hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, :

FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities except for derivatives are classified as measured at amortised
cost. This category includes bank and other borrowings, trade payables and othe
financial liabilities. MU \ Ri
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
ix Financial Instruments (Continued)

b. Financial liabilities (Continued)
De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

¢. Offsetting of Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seitle
the liabilities simultaneously.

X Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the statement cash flow comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Xxi. Leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as per terms of lease agreement. Lease income under an operating lease are
recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss as per the terms of lease
agreement.

Xxil. Inventories

Inventories include raw materials, consumable stores and spares and manufactured
inventory. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost comprises the purchase price, costs of conversion and other related costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of raw materials and
consumables packing materials are determined on first in first out basis. Cost of finished

goods and work in progress are determined using the absorption costing principle. Cost™, 380075
include the cost of material consumed, labour and appropriate proportion of costs/of*
conversion which include variable and fixed overheads. [[en

. . . . . | * |
Obsolete, defective and unserviceable inventories are duly provided for. The comparisen,

of cost and net realisable value is made on an item to item basis. Net realisable value is'the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of "

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, The net realisable value of
work in progress is determined by reference to the selling prices of related finished

. \\}J .. M




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2

Xiit,

Xiv,

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods,
recovery of consideration is probable, the associates costs and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over or managerial
involvement with the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates, sales tax, Goods and Service tax, value added tax except excise duty.
The Company does not provide any warranties or maintenance contracts to its customers.

Insurance

Revenue in respect of Insurance and other claim is recognized only on reasonable certainty
of ultimate collection.

Interest

Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method for financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Export incentive

An export incentive is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of export made, and
there is no uncertainty as to its receipt.

Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee
services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include
salaries and wages, bonus, ex-gratia etc. These are recognised as an expense at an
undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the
related service is rendered.

(b)  Post-employment Benefits

(i) Provident Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under whidh ; j oy
entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no oblltc,atiu:-:l {o

pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthl)
contributions towards employee provident fund to Government adnnnmteu_d"--.

provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's./ = Ar

contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and quq '
during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

W e \




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sor the financial year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

xiv Employee Benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-employment Benefits (Continued)
(ii) Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan, The
Company's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The calculation of the Company's obligation under
the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised in OCL. All expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognised
in employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Compensated Absences

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to
certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain
limits for future encashment/ availment. The Company makes provision for
compensated absences based on an independent external actuarial valuation
carried out at the end of the year.

XV, Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.
Current Income Tax

Provision for current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable
income for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the
taxation authorities, using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates and tax laws.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right”™; [550¢
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by thé',

same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net bfl.&lsf'
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. [ |

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases ol‘l Jed Ace 4

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. \L

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

xv Taxation (Continued)

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternative tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961 is
recognized as current tax in the Statement of Profit and loss. The credit available under the
Act in respect of MAT paid is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent it is
probable that the company will pay normal income tax during the year for which the MAT
credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability, MAT credit
recognized as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the
extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

xvi,  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share are the net
profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except
where the results would be anit-dilutive. \-«

—




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the financial year ended March 31, 201 8

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

xvii.  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a
present obligation that may, probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably.
Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of
outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic resources embodying economic benefits will
arise, related income are recognized in the year in which the change occurs.

xvitt,  Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

_  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest. \‘
\
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the yeur ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: [ndian Rupees in lakhs)

3

First time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from 1st April, 2017, with a transition
date of th July 2016 i.e the incorporation date of the Company These financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 are prepared by the Company
under Tnd AS for the first time.

The accounting policies se1 out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 3131t March, 2018 and the comparative
informalion presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 Since the Company was incorporated on 8 July 2016, the opening Ind AS
balance sheet does not apply to the Cotpany. In preparing its Comparative Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in
financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act {previous GAAP or Indian GAAP}.

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101:

A Reconciliation of equity

As st March 31, 2017

Note 1GAAP Adjustments on Ind AS
Irangition 1o [nd AS®

ASSETS

Non-current asseds

Property, plant snd cquipment 28.358.24 28,358 24
Cnpitul work-in-progress 1,620.57 1,620 57
Intangible assels 10.86 10,86
| in subsidiaries and Al 953,41 953 41
Financial assels

$nvesiments 576 1381 1957
Loans 24531 - 245 M
Orher financial assels 1,055.97 101597
Non-current tax essels {net) 945,66 233.66 1,179 32
(iher non-currend a55eLs 1,608, 56 1,698 56

Current aasels

Inwventories 21,061.08 21,061 08
Fmancial assels

Lnvesimenis 1 150 30.02 3403
Trade receivables 16,7321 16,732 71
Cash and cash equivalents 507.93 507 83
Benk balances other than cash and cesh equivalenis mentioned above 1.373.84 2371 84
Other Minancinl assets 74740 140
Cther current nsscls 2,004.90 2,004 %0
Todal assels 78,597.110 286,42 8,883.60
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Izquity share capital 100 1.00
Cihier equity 36,8940 613,42 * 37,507 51
Liabilities

Non-current linbilities
Financial Habilities

DBorrowings 2 4,602,09 (25,904 457619
Cuher financial liabilities - .
Provisions 675,55 675 55
Deferred 1ax Liabilities {net) i 56,02 153 938 65
Current labilitkes

Financiul habilities

Bormowings 18,434,17 1543417
T'tude payables P 10,065.66 10,065 66
Other finsncinl ligbilities . PedC 581250 5,812 50
Other current labiliies LU 2z
Provisions / 4206 4916
Current 1ax liabilitics (net) [f 6 804.46 (303.56) * 50110
Total equity sad liabilities l-_ \ 7850001 186.49 T5.883.60




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

3

First time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)

B Reconcilintion of total comprehensive income for the period ended Mareh 31, 2017

Period ended March 31, 2017

Revenue from operations
Other operating income

Other sncome
Tatsl income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Chunges in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Excise duty

Employee benefits expense

Financs costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Other expenses

Totnl expenacs

Profit before tax

Tax expenses

Current 1ax

Deferred 1ax credit/(charue)

Income tax expense
Profit for the year (A)
Other Comprehensive lncome

Ttema that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss

R of the net defined benefil plans

Income Lax related 1o above
Other comprehensive income for the year, not of tax {I)

Tolal comprehensive income for the year (A+B)

Note IGAAP Adjustments on Ind AS
trangition to Ind AS*
3 40,243.18 1,042.46 42,285 64
520,17 52017
.0 97594 51.83 1,028 77
41,739.2% 209529 43,834 58
27,149.17 27,149 17
{764.05) (74 03)
3 2,042.46 2.042.46
o 2,283.99 (31,42} 215257
24 1,252.03 (25.89) 1,226.14
2,244.57 - 2,244 57
795,76 - 739576
39,561.47 1,985.15 41,546 62
2,177.82 110,14 2,287 96
[4 769.58 (3032.55) * 46503
{144,76) 13.39 » (131N
623,82 {290.16) 133 66
1,554.00 40030 1,954 30
'] {31.42) {31 42)
j 10.87 1087
(20.55) (20 55)
1,554.00 ITRTS 1,933 75

C  Adjustments to Statement of Cash flows

There were no material differences between the Statement of Cash Flows presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP

D Notes to the Reconciliations

1 Investments

In accordance with Ind AS, financial assets representing investment in equity shares of entities other than subsidaries and amounts have been [air
valued through profit and loss. Under the IGAAP, all the investments were measured at lower of the cost or market value.

2 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with interest bearing loans and borrowings are amortised upfront and claiged to profit
or loss for the period. Under [nd-AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or Joss

using the effective interest method,

3 Deferred Tax

Under Previous GAAP, deferred taxes are recognised for the tax effect of liming differences between accounting profit and taxable profil for the year
using the income statement approuch: Under Ind AS, deferred 1axes are recognised using the balance sheet approach for future tax consequences of

temporary differences betweeth the ¢
consequential tax impacColthe g

LY
L

_I_mf-A-_,‘_‘»_'lrim._xihnnnl adjustments lead to temporary differences.

/

o

ind vilue of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. The above difference, twogetherywith the

\




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

3 First time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)
D Notes to the Reconciliations (Continued)

4 Provision for employee benefits expenses
Both under [GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under
IGAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurement gain and loss {actuarial gains
and losses on defined benefit obligation and the plan assets) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI. Thus, the employee benefit cost is reduced and Remeasurement gains/ losses on defined benefil plans has been
recognized in the OCI net of tax.

5 Excise Duty
Under IGAAP, sale of goods was presented as net of excise duty. However, under Ind AS, revenue from sale of goods is presented inclussive of
excise duty. Excise duty on sale of goods is separately presented on the face of statement of profit and loss as an expense. Thus sale of goods under
Ind AS has increased with a comresponding increase in other expense.

6 As discussed in Note 42, the assets and liabilities include those acquired pursuant to the demerger effective on | August 2016 Therefore, the
adjustment on transition to Ind AS include the impact for the period from | August 2016 to March 31, 2017 and also the impact of the asseis and
liabilities acquired by the demerged company prior to the acquisition date. This include the impact towards fair valuation of investment of Rs 36.46
Lakhs and fair valuation of borrowing by Rs 39.79 Lakhs, being for the period prior to the acquisition date of 1 August 2016.

7 Reconciliation of equity

Particular Note Amount

Net worth under IGAAP (A) 36,895.09
Summary of Ind AS adjustments

Investtnent recognised at fair value i 52.83
Loan amangement fees amortised on EIR basis 2 2589
Rectification of error in the tax provision * 537.24
Deferred tax on above adjustments 3 (2.54)
Total Ind AS adjustments (B) 613,42
Net worth under Ind AS (A+B) 37,508.51

# Prior period error in tax provision
During the current year, the Company has revised its return of income for the years ended 31 March 2016 (pentaining to Privi Organics Limited - the
demerged company) and 2017 towards deduction under section 32 AC of the Income tax Act, 1961 not claimed by it in those years erroneously and
ather errors in the tax depreciation calculation. Consequent impact of Rs 303.55 lakhs has been credited to current tax and net impact of Rs 645
lakhs is credited to deferred tax for the year ended March 31,2017 Further, Rs 23367 lakhs has been adjusted against the general reserve for the year
2016, pursuant to the requirements of the NCLT order dated 22 February 2017 relating to the Scheme of demerger {refer note 42). The
corresponding impacts has been considered under current tax liabilities and deferred tax asset/ liability.

Pl



66 OLE'PE 6LLLPIT o161 PEFOL'E wTeLLl SLFSE9S SEEOLML 087191 ROILLy
15'106°T = - = 15 106'T BLFFLIL £L'970°6 LSO
gr'si6'lE GLLLPIT 91'61 PEPILE WIELLL LTESH'ES 90°ET L098EL 9T060'9F
(] ongs oL'6 0z $8'5% 0TI 9L 96 1€l
WLy $E'56 - $8°91 6L [l - 00°¢91L
85008 96RO 23] e ¥eTIL - 1469 eFIry
9L5L 90'FST = 07T 98°09T 1865¢€ B oo sL'6le
[73°14 F6'S11 . FO'E [y ad £6 ¥ = [ £kl
95'5L w6 9L £33 £6°991 - it 95FP1
rTIsTL 866 = 6Ll STSI8 £I'98TT = IT09T 16°S20°C
ST FLOEE'LL [ IZ651'¢ EL'GLI'PT 1 1L0%6E ocel X6 S1'650'PE
pol 61'I8% = 16€ SLTPE 0TLHE - = oTLrS
1se sl = 20 SEPI 6015 - - 015
I9LTSL 1TLSTE = 99°€5T SEE06 T9'P89'8 - [Exnd | 15961'L
65 I01°1 9rer = Pyl e | - PEELY 16149
S102°1€ PIBW $107°1€ WP py e L107 ‘1oAY 2107 ‘IE 9MEN smak oy - LI0T “10 (udy
1B 5V 18 5y Bulanp nonsp 1834 ag) 1o 1By W EY Founp non3ag ) SwLmp LOIPPY 1B SY
yroig BN uopERsadag A $E01D

ssarfoad - o [Ende)

SARIEA
Arauyaew 3 wepd s
srusadmbs g
sumndie )y

snpudmba 320410
2001 pUe 2T
uonEf|eIsI [EHAZ]
yuawdinba pue Wweqf
stesse; TUIpInG PIOURSTT]
SIMNIEND) TS

Surppng

e[ ploygsea]

TR0V

uondiiasag

yuswdinbo pue puepd ‘Quodorgy ¢

(sUpfe] Ut saadmy uejpu] Aouaimy)

8I0Z [ £ Yo4Upy 10 S0

(Panuy02) SHUSNIANES |BIIULUL] JUO[EPULIS ) 0) SAON

paywry erpu] solue3I 1Akd



.

"poned 2y Butmp (%5'S
syueq [erdes Surjiom o] SIBIYI PUNCIIS pue S -

AN

([

|| O Vpunodiagy 5

~ —
BEY N
L3050 Aoy
TR
BR E H N

iy dnegy

R

;pousd snoraand) 49'y @ paziferded 1500 Suumonioq yussaudas ey { PR 1765 'S8 ANIL10T ‘Y £ yore) SRl St [S75H AN JO UNOIWLE UB S3pNJ2U) AIu)|Iew pue ie|d

Wipus[ (a1 0y ALnoas a3reyo 1S1 St peBpald aXe (07'L 1 4°5T pouad Sn0I1]) 60°S10°9T SY 0 FUAUNOWNE "S)sSe S|q3uUE) Jo 100(q 18N 241

18'8L6'62 WOIELLN [0se1e 10 £55'€1 £80IL L 05 v90'8 9z DLO'Z] LOS0L'EP
££079°1 - £5029°1 05 ¥90'8 93 P66'E 12069°S

FE BEE'ST zeL'tl £ 0sil's 10 L5551 OT 06L'SP = QFSLO'S 93P 10'8E

[19L [3:319 3 $9°L QT 8F 96 [£1 2 L6 v 66901

16°68 606 il 1819 0'E91 00°E51

1£067 bl - N 96 60 Tre = - -3 0

68§ 98057 - 66'p1 (RSP 8L61E - €5l CSPDE

LT 06Z11 & LI | zL T £E0¥1 < orit £6ZEl

600 19'e8 TS SE8L ocrl oLt 9 0P|

[S-1v e 9T 518 - LY 0L 6LTLL 15 $TO°T 97 TEG SIEer't
SPELEGL ELGLSFI = 2wely’) ST 198! BLSS0'PE 60927 60 678°8T
ZPHOT RLIVE pr'oT PE9LE TP . o GLLPS

2343 SS bl - $50 ool 6018 = 8018

967679 $S €06 = STLEN 0£ 99 1£961°L = §7692'C 9T IE6'Y

610K e = 9o 6P 16 149 6 149

. . 910z ysminy [ jase . g10Z wniny
LIOTFIE YRIEN LI0T 1L PIEN Ik am s9dsomsg jojunpse  LT0TEE EE ] pouiad ay} povssd 1 18 su asBaauag
e sy |5y Fupanp wonag Jeaf 2 10 uo wonvrasdag FLE Y Bwunp vonRpR(Q 21 SULINP UOLIPPY  J0 JUNCIIT WO pauagnby
10| 1PN wogeRadag AN 59040

ssaaBoud -ur- yaom ey

ISIA
Agpungpew o wepd 35e]
suawdinks qeq
siridn )

suswdinba 330
SR} PUE 2 NYHLIT]
none|EIsw [ERLINS|E
wawdinbs pue wejd
135567 Futp(ing PoYssEXT
SIRUTI) LIS

Supng

pUe] PloyosII

uodyrsg

(panuguo)) yuawmdinba pue jueyd ‘fpradoay

R10Z "1 £ 4240y 10 5D

L4

(sypper un saadny wepy[ AduaLInD)

(Ponuyuo)) SHUSWIANEIS [BRUEUL JUO[EPUEIS Y} 0) S3ION

pawI Y BIpU] $OIUB3I0) 1AL



BONESIENIIE U0 uoIsts0xl JO YIRG-AILm Suasaidsr seak au Fump uonalaq ()

9ROIE £y irg 33 968 OpTid 24y £5ET Tl or 9Ll
PLOIL 63 £9 = 68 £9 £0°PBE 118 -4 Iuudajaaap Japun 5sse 3|(1TuEug
L6 VLML 338 G568 15 80¢ oFLO% £5£T ol LEBLE s1esse a|qidumn)
g8 ¢l 65891 el AR5 tF gl - - i bE! supfu juawmdoppaacy
90T %6 11T gt (R 2 91641 66T £5£T 7 80967 s1onposd go aes 3o siydng
v oT 908 = S0ZE IThLE 0S¥ pasad | 9B LEF aemyos pue samdun?)
210g 16ndny s10T ndny
LIOT "EE POy LTOT *LE YRy povtad aip 1 18 58 sa85mmag] LTOT F1E IIEW porsad oy povsad 118 58 Jadaoma
jESY 185V Supnp voe|ag pouad sqy 104 Jounaog uo paamby oy Funanp dolRpg ays Supinp uopppy 10 FINDIIE U6 pasmby uoydpasaq
U 1N WOIESLIOIY #a0]g 5040
WIs IT658 - 858K £Yors TS - ELGSE SFISTL
FIOLT 68'€Y - - H2'E9 T0°FET = oDPRT Juawdoaasp JapLn 53558 AqIEEIL]
L8 1w [A%74 ] = 858F FLOLL GTLITI -+ £L°65€ OFL98 REFE AqLINE [#10
e I€8L1 - 96 §5°891 P8I : = EFPEI SBL wRawdopa(]
19°719€ BIDET = 4Tl €6 112 6L'165 = tTosE ¥IEL s13npoud Jo ofes jo siny
FI'FE £891F = LSOT 9THEE L6'0SF - &0 BF0sY esnyos pue sandmo
810715 Q4 102 °3¢ (avm ey £107 *10 1y $L0C IS WPITW caweiap awak L10T “10 1ady
1ESY 122 Fuunp uoipiag Juak gy aog JESY jLE1% Suganp worRpRg 21y BulInp uoINppyY  JE SV uopdpsg
1E BN UIESDAOMY WI0|Q S50

5)as58 IpqIBuB) O] g
(s1{e] w1 $92dny] uRipy] (Aouaun))

8107 [§ YD 1D 5D
(P20uuo?)) SHUAE)S [E12URUL] JUC|EPURIS 3]} 0) $3JON

poyUILT BIpU] SOTUEBI() 1ALL]



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
asai March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs})

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

A. Investment in Subsidiaries (unquoted)
18,274,728 (March 31, 2017: 2,66,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 of Privi
Biotechnologies Private Limited

50,100 (March 31, 2017: 50,100) Equity shares of USD 1 each Privi
Organics USA Inc

Total A

B. Investment in Associate (unguoted)
87,340 equity shares of Rs. 100 each of Minar Organics Private Limited
Less: provision for impairment

Total B
Total (A+B)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Investments

Non current investments

Investment in equily instruments (quoted )

Fair value through profit and loss

5 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Indusind Bank Lid.
9,94 equity shares of Rs. 2 each of Bank of Baroda
5,000 equity shares of PNB Gilts Ltd. of Rs. 10 each

Current invesiments

Trade (unguoted)

Investments in mutwal funds

Fair value through profit and loss

Principal emerging bluechip fund-Growth
36,292,058 units and 199 fractions face value of Rs 10
Reliance equity fund

13,189 Units and 69 fractions face value 0f Rs 2,50
Reliance growth fund

1,063 units and 20 fractions face value of Rs 2.50
IDFC-Cash-DDR Fund

29.967 units and 50 fractions of face value of Rs 10

Grand total (A+B)

Agpregate amount of quoted investments
Market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investmentsy, T =

/

As at As at
March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
2,471,710 91022
30.61 30.61
2,502.31 940,83
- 14,29
- {1.81)

= 12.58
2,502.31 95341
2,502, 95341
- {1.81)

- 0.07

s 1593

= 3.57

- 19.57

i 32.83

% 10.90

= 10.30

300,17 -

300.17 54.03
30017 73.60

- 19.57

- 19.57
300.17 54.03

\\'\
LWR
N



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
asal March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

8 Loans
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated}

Nen- current
Loans to related parties (Refer Note 34)

¢ Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated}

Non-current

Investments in term deposits (with remaining maturity of more than twelve months)
Security deposits

Total {A)

Current

Loans and advances to employees
Unutilised Export Incentives Licences
Total {B)

Total (A+B)

10 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for bad and doubiful advances

Deposits with custom authoritics
Prepaid Expenses

Balance with excise authorities
Vat/Sales Tax Receivable

11 [nventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials (including goods in transit Rs. 3,770.23 lakhs (P.Y. Rs 3,535.95 lakhs)
Finished goods (including goods in transit Rs. 1,805.74 lakhs (P.Y.: Rs. 730.31 lakhs)
Work-in-progress

Stores and spares

Packing material

Fuel

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
. 245.31
- 245.31
- 631 28
457.08 384 69
457.08 1,015.97
22.35 13.62
936.69 733.78
959.04 74740
959.04 1,763.37
163.63 1,041.30
36.15
{36.15) -
163.63 1,041.30
6,00 6.00
98.39 106.6%
15.95 284.21
257.97 260.36
541.94 1.698.56
7,583.0% 6,404.61
4,339.90 3,745.31
6,578.23 10,359.86
270.22 253.88
64.07 78.14
220.01 219.28
19.055.52 21,061.08
\.r-\.\



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
asat March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

As at Asat
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

12 Trade Receivables
{Unsecured unless otherwise stated)

Considered good 20,824.57 16,7321

Considered doubtful 10.86 10.86

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (10.836) {10.36)
20,824.57 16.732.71

Refer note 35 for information about credit risk and market risk of trade receivables.

The movement in allowance for bad and doubtful debts is as follows:

Balance as at beginning of the year 10.86 10.86
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year - .
Trade receivables written off during the year ” -

Balance as at the end of the year 10.86 10.86

13 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash on hand 3.67 290

Remittance in transit 282,12 :

Balances with Banks

In current accounts 290.35 5396

Earner exchange Foreign Currency account 134.92 -

term deposits (with original maturity of fess than three months) 269.89 45097
981.45 507.83

14 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Earmarked balances with banks
Unpaid dividend . 027
Margin money deposits (with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve 1,129.37 2,373.57
months)

1,129.37 2,373.84
Note : Margin money deposit amounting to Rs 303.92 Lakhs are pledged with banks for non cash
limits and term deposit Rs.505.15 Lakhs are pledged as cash security with banks for the loans taken

15 Other current assets

{Unsecured, considered good)
Receivable from government authorities 2,396.00 1,355.50
Advance for supply of goods and services 638.44 521.44
Prepaid Expenses 43.20 70.883
Vat / Sales Tax receivabe 91.81 57.08

; ? 3.169.45 2.004 50
/M/,,




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 11, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
16  Share Capital
Authorised:
10,000 (as at March 31, 2017 ; 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00
I1ssued, Subscribed and Paid up:
10,000 {as at March 31,2017 : 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00
1.0 1.00
a} Reconciliation of the number of shares

Deneription As at March 31,2018 As at March 31, 2017

Number Amount Number Amuumnt
Slhinres ding al the beginning of the year 10,000 1.0¢
Add Shares issued during the year 10,000 100
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 100 10,000 100

b) Rights, preferences and resiriciions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regards to dividends and share in the company's
residual assets. The equity shares are entilted to receive dividend as declared from time to tite. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a pol! {not
on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on

which any call or ather sums presenlty payable have not been paid

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of
all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

¢) Shares held by Holding Company

As at March 31,2018 Aa st March 31,2017
Number Ampunt Number Amount
Fairchem Speciality Limited 19,000 1.00 10,000 | 0
d) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of shares
Asg at March 31,2018 Ax ot March 31, 2017
Number % Number %
Fairchem Speciality Lamited 10,000 100% 10,000 100%%




Privi Organics India Limited
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As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

17 Other equity

General reserve 35,573.76 35573 76
Retained Eamings 4,520.38 1,933.75
40,094.14 37.507 51

A Retained Earnings:-

Retaitied eamings represent the amount of accumulated earnings/ {losses) at each Balance Sheel date of the Group, prepared in accordance with the basis
of preparation section.

B General Reserve
Refer Note 42

C  Defined benefit plans actuarial gains/(losses) accumulated in retained earnings, net of tax

Particulars Actuarial Guinfloss
Defined benefit plans actuarial gains/(losses) (20.55)
As at March 31, 2017 (201.55)
Defined benefit plans actuarial gains/(tosses) (3.28)
As at March 31, 2018 (23.83)

D Capital Management
The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the

The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The company montiors capital using Debt-Equity ratio. For this purpose, debt is defined as total liabilities comprising interest bearing loans and
borrowings lss cash and cash equivalents {including current investments). Equity comprises all components of Equity.

The Company's debt equity ratio as at March 31, 2018 was as follows:

Particolars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Total Debt 23.55638 2301036
Less Cash and cash equivalents and short term invesimenis 2,010.82 2,881.67
Net Liabilines (A) 21,445.56 20,128 69
Equity {B) 40,095.14 37,508 51
Debd - Equity Ratio 0.5 054
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18 Borrowings

A.  Non-current borrowings

Term Loans from banks (secured)

Term loan in Indian currency

Term loans in foreign currency

Vehicle loan { hypathecated with the lender)

Other {unsecured)
Deferred Sales Tax Loan
Loan {rom Department of biotechnology

Noo-current portion Current portion {*)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2017
4,19722 347 87 166,00 166.00
154127 3grzio 2,443.74 2,778 41

214 137 £.63 1094
150,42 23597 35.43 9384
6.24 12.48 6.24 624
569729 457619 2,70724 305543

#) Term loan are secured by a first mortgage on the Company's immovable propertics both present
by way of hypothecation of all the Company's assets (save and excepl book debts
tools and accessories) both present and future subject to charge
specified movable assets for securing the

b} Terms and repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows:

and future ranking paripassu interest and o first charge
and inventories) including movable machinery {save and exeepl spares
s created in favour of the Compuny's bankers for inventories, book debts and other
borrowings oft Working Capital

Name of the Bank

Bank ¢f Baroda

Stanudard Chartered Bank

DBS Bank

RBL Bank WCTL

RBL Bank FCTL

IDFC Bank

Currency

IMR,

usp

UsD

UsD

UsD

INR/ ¢

Interest Rate

11.20%

5.75%

6.10%

6.00%

3MLibor +
5.25%

S ER0006

Year of Maturity

2020

2020

2018

2018

2019

2024

Instaliment

The term loan 15
repayable in 20
quaterly installments
of Rs 41 50 Lakhg
Storting from Jung
2015

The lemm loan is
repayable in 14
quarterly
installments of USD
392,857 14 each
starling from July
20 h

The term loan is
tepayable n 14
quarterly
instaliments of USD
500,000 each
starting from
Sertember 2017
The term loan is
repayable in 7
staggering quanierly
nstallmenis of USD
205329 34 each uill
2018,

The term loan is
repayable in 5
quarterky
installments of LUSD
319,233 84 each, 10
quarterly
installments of USD
39904230 each
{tolal 15
installments) starting
from Mareh 2016
The term loan 1s
repayable in 20
quaterly installments
of Bs 200 Lakhs
Starting from Mar
2020

M. 4

Carrylag amount as at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
363,22 514 00
2,044.00 3,056 68
- 2419
383.00 782 58
1,557.32 2,587 00
4,000.00
Ay \ W/ \
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18 Borrowings
A, Non-current borrowings (Continued)

¢) Package Scheme of Incentive permits the tompany 10 accumulate the sales tax collected from its customers in respect of goods produced at Mahad fuctory.
Sales tax collected each year is repayable in five equal yearly installments after ten years from the year of collection. Outstanding amount is repayible in
annual installments till April 2022 from the date of reporting date,
Sales Tax Deferral Loan is interest tree. Current maturity of Sales Tax Deferral Loan of Rs. 85.63 Lakhs is disclosed under "other current linbilities” {
2017 - 93,84 lakhs )

d} This is towards Grant-in-aid and loan reeeived (rom the Department of Biotechnology, Ministry of Science & Technology under Small Business
Innovation Research Initiative ( SBIRI) scheme for “Enzyme Calalyzed Manufacture of esters™. The aid is received in the form of loan Rs. 18.72 lakhs for
funding the man-power costs in relation to the research and development project, The loan is repayable to the Government in ten cqual yearly instalments
starting from March 201 |,

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

B.  Current borrowings (sccured)

Cash credit 7,840.47 8,837 87
Packing Credit from bank 6,432.75 6,907 99
Buyers credit 3,370.59 2,565.07
Bock overdraft 15.28 123,24
Total 17.659.09 18.434.17

All the abave loans are secured by first pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company both present and fusture

Working Capital Loans from banks are secured by way of hypothecation of inventories both on hand and in transit and book debis and other receivables
both present and future and also secured by way of second churge on fixed assets -Warking capital loans carry interest rate @ 8.5% 10 9 5% and are
payable on demand.

Post shipment and packing credit from bank carry interest rate @ 1.50% to 4.08% and are due for payment within 180 days.

19 Provisions

Non-Current Current
Mareh 21,2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

Provisions for employee benefita

Compensated absences 198,65 18163 13,49 1662
Graluity 594,50 493 92 3306 2831
Other Provision
Provision for wealih tax - - 0.20 020
Pravision for fringe benefit tax (net of advance fringe benefil tox) - 4.03 40
R
793,15 67355 60,78 49 |6
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20

Year ended Period ended
March 31,2018  March 31,2017
Income Tax
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 3 1, 2017 are
Currenl income tax:
Current income tax expenses 999,68 465.03
Recognition of MAT credit entitlement -
Deferred tax:
Relating fo origination and reversal of temporary differences 522.83 {131 37)
[ncome tax expense reported in the statement of profic or loss 1,522.51 333.66
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Tax expense related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan {1.73) {10.87)
Income tax charged to OCI {1.73) (10.87)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounfing profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March
31, 2018 and March 31, 2017:
Accounting profit before income tax 4,413.31 228796
At [ndia’s statutory income tax rate of 34.61% (March 31, 2017 34.61 %) 1,527.36 791.52
MAT credit entitlement - (324.95)
Section J5(2AB) deduction (103.42) (137.79)
Exempt income (21.46) -
Non-deduetible expenses for tax purposes 89.52 263
Others 28.78 {392)
1,520.78 32279
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profil and loss 1,520.78 32279
Asmt Creditficharge)in  Credit/{charge} in On accound of As it
1 April 2017 the Statement of Other Business 31 March, 2018
Profit amd Loss Comprehensive Combination
loceme
Deferved dax {aasets)Iiabilities
Provision for post retirement benefits and other employee benefits
Prgvision lor doubtful debts and advances {7.46) (12.70) - - (20,16)
Expenses allowable for tax purposes when pad (268.40) (26,79} (1.73) - (296.92)
Tax Depreciation 1469033 28636 1,946.69
Fuir value {gains)flosses .96 (&40 - 155
Mat credit entillement {464.78) anaz (153.41)
958.65 52283 (1.73) 147975
Asat  Credit(charge}in  Creditf{charge} in On aceount of Asal
8th July 2006 the Statement of Qther Business 31 March, 2017
Profit and Loss Comprehensive Combinatien
Income
Deferred tax (asscis}liabilities
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (7 46) (7o)
Expenses allowable for (ax purposes whén pad 2766 (L0 8T (28519) (268 40)
Tux Depreciation 29679 1,391 54 1,690 33
Fair value {gams)flosses 896 896
MAT credit entillement {464 78) {164 78)
(13137 {1087) 1100 89 958 65

JW
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21

22

As at As at
March 31,2048 March 31,2017
Trade Payables
Trade payables
Due to micro and Small enterprises * . -
To Others 12,100,26 10,065.66
12,100.26 10,065.66
* On the basis of information and records available, there are no outstanding dues and outstanding intrest on dues to
micro and small enterprise.
The Company's exposure to credit and currency and tiquidity risk related to trade payables are disclosed in Note 37.
Other financial Habilities
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 107.82 75.40
Payable for capital expenditure 2,255.44 860.82
Deposits 0.25 .25
Payable for Expenses 2,297.84 1,422.76
Salaries, wages and bonus payable 615.57 31324
Derivative Instruments 100.46 §4.60
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 184 ) 2,707.24 305543
8,084.62 5.812.50
The Company's exposure 1o credit and currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities are
disclosed in Note 37,
Other current Liabilities
Statutory dues (including provident fund, tax deducied at source and others) 117.06 o211
Advance from customers 7930
196.36 302.11
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24

25

26

27

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Domestic sales
Export sales

Other operating revenue

Export incentives
Job work charges

Other income

Interest income from fixed deposits

Gain on write-back of Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Dividend income

Gain on sale of tangible assels

Fair value changes in investments measured at FYTPL

Miscellaneous income
Foreign currency fluctuations gain, net

Cost of materials consumed

Raw materiat consumed
Opening Stock

Stock acquired on demerger
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Stock
Consumpticn

Packing material consumed
Opening Stock

Stock acquired on demerger
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Stock
Consumption

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
23,091.20 13,702.13
53,917.04 28,583.5]
77,008.24 42.285.64
1,016.65 431,87
- 38.30
1,016.65 520,17
123.56 160.62
21.04 92,75
0.35 0.07
L.60 .33
3.87 52.86
41.98 1539
1,405.3¢ 705.75
1,597.70 1,028.77
6,404.61 =
- 7,335.08
47,206.67 25,36747
1,583.09 6,404.61
46,028.19 26,297.94
78.14 -
- 60.56
1,351.56 868.81
64.07 78.14
1,365.63 851.23
47,393.82 27,149.17




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

28 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Closing stock:
Finished goods
Working in Process

Opening stock:
Finished goods
Working in Process

Stock acquired on demerger
Finished goods
Working in Process

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

29 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

30 Finance cost

Interest on term loans

Less: Interest capitalized

Net interest on term loans

Interest on working capital loans

Interest on other loans

Amortisation of premium on forward exchange contracts
Other Finance cost

Interest on delayed payment of income tax

31  Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
4,339.90 3,745.31
6,578.23 10,359.86
10,918,153 14,105.17
3,540,74 -
10,359.86 -
13,900.60 -
- 4,503.15
. 8,837.97
- 13,341.12
2,982.47 {764.05)
3,555.95 1,958.16
242,80 109.95
328.65 184.46
4,127.40 225257
445,91 37017
(51.45) (59.41)
394,46 310.76
1,299,838 693.20
1.58 121,08
84.08 73.78
38.42 2732
1,818.42 1,226.14
3,764.94 2,176.34
48,58 68.23
3,813.52 2,244.57
] \
_—
E
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32

Other Expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Excise duty related to (decrease} / increase in inventory of finished goods
Power and fuel

Job work Charges

Repairs and maintenance of’
Buildings

Plant and machinery

Others

Contract labour charges
Lease expense

Research and development
Pollution control expenses
Other factory expenses
Insurance

Postate and Telephone

Raies and taxes

Training Expenses

Auditors remuneration:
Statutory audit

Other services

Out of pocket expenses
Brokerage & Commission
Printing and stationery
Freight outward

Selling and distribution

Legal and professional fees
Travelling and conveyance
Bank charges

CSR expenses

Sundry balances w/off
Provision for doubtful advances
Miscellanecus expenses {net}

a) [n-house research and development expenses

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
624.08 385.27
- 3947
5,359.07 2,672.19
801.49 502.25
121.5% 37.23
473.25 272.88
151.5%6 55.37
629.43 428.01
45.22 2750
597.63 398.14
196.78 8228
J28.12 145.58
75,75 4917
50.89 40.67
44.32 20.38
8.52 13.23
45.00 44,50
3.63 3.65
4.42 -
84.86 74.10
35.64 20,02
2,214.21 T77.32
624.11 261.00
468.34 22281
413.84 247.04
335.97 279.90
23.21 18.10
19.51 6.81
36.15 -
385.25 270.89
14,203.52 7,395.76

The details total revenue expenditure (net of recoveries) on Research and Development (R&D) eligible for weighted deduction under

section 35(2AB) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 are given below,

Revenuwe Expenditure

Salorics and woges

Material consumnbies! spares

Orher expenditures dirccily reloted o R&D

Total

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2017
396,38 06 47

61.78 48.24

135.47 4343

59763 198,14

(oot %mnpound “0\
| nm Mare, |

4 Mahatarm,
. Mumiga-A05801 4 -
India s
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32  Other Expenses

b) Corporate social responsibility

The Company has spent Rs. 25.21 lakhs (Previous year : Rs, 18.10 lakhs) towards various schemes of Corporate Social Responsibitity as

prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details are:

1 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: Rs, 42.00 lakhs(Previous period : Rs. 31.03 lakhs)

2 Amount spent during the year on:

In cash/payable Yet 1o be puid
m cash
(i) ConstructionfAcquisition of any asset -
(ii) For purposes other than (i) above 251 -
{18.10)
{figures in brackets pertain to previous year)
¢} Leases as lessee
i. Future minimum lease paymenis
At March 31, 2018 the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows
Yenr ended Period ended|
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Less than one year 49,56
Between one and five years 37.69 3532
More than five years - 251.27
137,25 286.59
ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Year ended Period ended|
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Lense expenses 45.22 2750
45.12 27.50

.-\ﬁ"
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33

Segment Information

A,

B.

Factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, including the basis of organisation

For managemnt purpose, the Company has determined its reportable segment s "Aromatic chemicals" since the chief operating decision

maker { CODM) evaluates the Company's performance as a single segment.

Information about reportable segments

Year ended
Marcch 31, 2018

Revenue T7.008,24

Period ended
March 31, 2017

42,285.64

77.008.24

42,285.64

Geographic information

The geographic information analyses the Company's revenue and non-current assets by the Company's country of domicile and other
countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and

segments assets were based on the geographic location of the respective non-current assets,

The preduct offerings which are part of the speciality chemicals portfolio of the Company are managed on a worldwide basis from India,

The amount of the group’s revenue is shown in the table below.

Year ended Period ended

March 31,2018 March 31, 2007
India 23,091.20 13,702.13
Qutside India 53.917.04 28,583.51
Total 77.008.24 42,285.64

All the non-current assets of Company are located within India.

Information about major customers

Revenues from three major customers represented approximately RS 10,714.66Lakhs (Previous period :-Rs.9,623.69 lakhs), RS 5767.37
Lakhs.{Previous period :-5,060. 68 lakhs) and Rs 4,057.36(Previous period :-3,144.,89 lakhs) of the Company's total revenues.

/
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34 Related party disclosures
a) List of Related Parties

Related parties where control exist:

Holding Company
Fairchemn Speciality Limited

Subsidiary Company (Where control exists)
Privi Biotechnologies Private Limited
Privi Organics USA [nc.

Associate Company
Minar Organics Private Limited (up to 21-03-2018)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives
Vivira Chemical [ndustries

Vivira Chemicals Private Limited

Privi Life Science Private Limited

Babani Investment and Trading Private Limited

Satellite Technologies Private Limited

Vivira [nvestment and Trading Private Litnited

Babani Bros. LLP

Key Management Personnel {KMP)
Mr. Mahesh P. Babani (Managing Director}
Mr D, B Rao {Executive Director)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. D. Vinay Kumar

b) During the year, following transactions were carried out with the related parties :

Holding Company Subsidiaries and A il Enterprises owned or Key Managenment Personnel
sigmificantly inMuenced by key and their relatives
wiamagement perspnnel or their

relatives

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 March 31, 2013 March 31,2017 March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Transactions
Purchase of raw materials
Privi Life Science Pvt Lid . z 2 . 22.40 656
Privi Organics USA Inc - - 131584 95230
Sale of finlaled goods
Privi Organics USA Inc - - 10,820.75 7.143.08 . g
Privi Life Science Pvi Lid - = - - 2178 1519
Sale of Assets Machinery
Brivi Biotechnologies Pve Lid - . 5.08
f— tofexp

Fairchem Speciality Limited 1678

Rent, lease and hire (expense)
Minar Organics Fvt Lid - - 15.00 600
Vivira Chemicals Pvt Ltd - - - - 12,00 4.00
Rent, lease and hire (income) - - - - - -
Minar Organics Pyt Lid - - 030 020
Privi Life Science Pvi Lid ~ = = - 12.00 8.00
Vivirg Chemicals Pvi Lid s . - E 030 0.20
Adyance given
Privi Biotechnologies Pyt Lid - - - 23129
Managerial reumeration
D B Raa - - - - . - 9000 5350
Mahesh P Babani - . - - - - 108 00 6l 85
Investment in shures
Privi Biotechnologies Pvt Ltd - p W [ LS01AN
Sale of investment i
Mahesh P Babani 1439
Salary paid | I \
D Vinaykumar - \ - |- | 1835 1143

| [ ITil, J Jd f L] ¥
*R 1on daes net include charge for gratuity and lu.n-'a__‘:nc.s::‘hm'ﬂ'nl ke BV w 15’:-I'._i¢'-n'k up 15 not available \w \‘ [W .
gl ) } '\\\r/
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34  Related party disclosures (Continued)

b} During the year, following transactions were carried out with the related parties : (Continued)

Partlculara Holding Company Subsldlaries and Associates Enmterprizes owned or Key Management Personnel
slgwificanily influemced by key
management personnel or their
relatives

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 21, 2018 March 31, 2017

Recievables /Other assets

Privi Organics USA Inc - - 3,358.11 425298 - - -
Vivira Chenicals Pvt Lid - - . - 138 1.02

Vivira Chemicals Industries - - - . 05l 05|

Privi Life Science Privale Limited - - - - 82.48 49 65

Minar Qrganics Pvi Lid - : 084 049 - .

Privi Biotechnologies Py Lid - - 508 24530 - - -
Trade Payables

Privi Life Science Pvt Ltd - - - - 15.58 225

Minar Organics Py Lid - . * 203

Prvi Organics USA Ine - - - 171 6%
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35 Employee benefits - Post-employment benefit plans

) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employes salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident
Fund, and EST which are defined contribution plans, The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions

are charged to statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

The Company has recognised the following amount as an expense and included in the Note 29 under “Contribution to provident & other funds":

Year ended

March 31,2018

Cantribution to employees provident fund 209.23
Contribution to ESI 1.0%

Perlod ended
March 31,2017

120,06
027

b) Defined benefit plans

The Company operates one post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, whe has rendered a1
least five years of continucus service, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement. In case of employees
completing longer service periods, the Company's scheme is more favourable as compared to the obligation under Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Asat
March 31, 2018

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity

As at
March 31,2017

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 627.56 52223
Fair value of the plan assets -
Net liability 627.56 522,23
Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Movement in present valug of defined benefit obligation

Liability on account of demerger 522.23 414.32
Opening Defined Benefit Obiligations ; .
Current service cost 65.63 69 37
Interest cost 37.86 1211
Actuarial floss 5.0 3142
Benefils paid (31.78) {24 99)
Past service cost 28.61
Closing defined benefit obligation 627.56 522.23
Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 65.63 69.37
Initerest on defined benefit obligations 37.86 21l
Past service cost 28.61 -
Total 132,10 101 48
Remeasurements recognised in Other comprehensive income
Change in financial assumptions (18.62) -
Experience adjustments 23.63 31.42
Total 5.01 3l 42
Total expense recognised 137.11 132 90
B A

1
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35 Employee benefits - Post-employment benefit plans (Continued)
b} Defined benefit plans (Continied)

- Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date

Discount rate (p.a.) 7.56% 1.25%
Expecled rate of Salary increase (p.a.) 8.25% 8.25%
Attrition Rate 30 and Below ; 30 and Below :

12% 12%

311040 Years : 8% 311040 Years : 8%
411050 Years : 5% 41 to 50 Years : 5%
5l andabove: 1% 51 and above. 1%

Mortality Tables Tndian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
{2006-08) (2006-08)

The estimates of future salary increase . considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

Estimated rate of return on plan assets is based on average Jong term rate of return expected on invesiments of the Fund during the estimated term of the

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

DHscomnt rate Future salary Increase
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Inspact on defined benefit obligation due to:
8. 1% incrense {52.11) {4587) 5906 5203
b 1% decrease 60.06 5307 (52.25) (45 87)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, as calculated by Actuary,

Experience adjustment for last two™ years

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Defined benefit obligation 62756 52223
Plan assels 5 -
Surplusf{defici) (627.%6) (522:23)
Experience adjusiment on plan lisbilities 23.63 314z
Experience adjustment on plan assets

(*) Company has been in existence for two years only

o by

\/
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36 Financial instruments
a. Accounting classification and fair values

The Group is exposed to the risks of changes in fair value of its financial assets and liabilities. The following table summarises the fair values and carrying
amounts of financial instruments.

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Falr value
Finaocla) assets mensured at fair value
Investments 30007 300,17 73.60 7300
Financial assets menaured at amortized coat
Loans - - 24531 24531
livestments in term deposits 1,12937 1,129.37 3004 85 3,004 85
Security deposits 457.08 457.08 384.69 384 69
Other assets 939.04 959.04 747 40 4740
2,845,66 2,845.66 4,455,858 A055.85
Fi al linbilities d at Falr value
Derivatives -forward contracts and [ntrest Rate Swap 100,46 104146 84 60 5460
100.46 100,46 84.60 84,60
Fi ial [fabilicy ed at amortised cost
Borrowings 23,556.39 23,556.38 2301036 23,010.36
Note

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables, trade payables and other financial liabilities have fair values that approximate to their
carrying amounts due to their short-term nature,

b.  The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note {a) above have been ¢lassified into a three categories depending on the inputs used in the
valuation technique.

The categories used are as follows:
Level | - Quoted prices (wnadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or mdirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - [nputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

Level [ Level 11

March 31,28 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2007
Financinl assets at fair value through profii or loss: = = d
Invesiments - 1957 30017 5403
19,57 300,17 54,0

Finangial Liabilitles at fair valve through profit or loas:
Derivatives 100 46 84 60
- - 100,46 84.60

There were no significant changes in classification of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities. There were also no significanl movements

between the fair value hierarchy classifications.
> \-\ m I\
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36

(i

(i)

(iii}

{iv}

Financial instruments {Continued)
Calculation of lir values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between merket participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used
for the year ended March 31, 2017,

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments has been determined using valuation techniques with market observable inputs. The models
incorporate varicus inputs including the credit quality of counter-parties and foreign exchange forward rates.

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (*NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the
published statements as at Balance Shest date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price al which
issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

Loans and borrowings have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts as it is based on the net present value of the anticipated future cash
flows using rates currently available for debt on simnilar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments in term deposits, other financial assets (except derivative financial instruments), trade payables,
and other financial liabilities (except derivative financial instruments) have fair values that approximate te their carrying amounts due to their short-term

J'
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37  Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from the financial instruments:

1) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to mest its contractual obligations, The carrying amount of
financial assets represent the maxmimum credit exposure.

Impairment of Trade receivables

At March 31, 2018, the ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired was as follows.

Carrying amouni

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Meither past due nor impaired 15,943 88 12,317 47
Past due 0-90 days 4,785 81 3,786 24
Past due $0-180 days 5309 0577
Past due 180-270 days 1058 8730
Past due 270-360 doys 1226 1577
More than 360 days 1895 2016
20,824 57 16,732 71

Movement in impairment provision

Amount
Aquired in the business combinotion 1086
Impairment loss recognised "
Amounts writlen off -
Balance as i March 31,2017 10,86
Impairment loss recognised .
Amounts writien ol '
Balance as al March 31,2018 10.86

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment
behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk and the current provision for the bad debis represents the impacted credit loss it forsees in its

Financial assets other than trade receivables are not impaired and further, there are no amounts that are past due. Management believes that the amounts
are collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation.

Exposure fo liquidity risk:

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements

Contraciual cash Nows
March 31,2013 Carrying amount Total 1 yearor less 1-2 years 2-5years  Morc tham 5 years
Non-terivative financinl liabilities
Termi loans from banks 8,604,532 8,604 53 2.707.24 2,06603 2431 26 1,400 00
Eher borrowings 17,643 81 17,643 8| 12,643 81
Trade payables 12,100 26 12,100.26 12,100.26
Other linoneial laiblies 521692 521692 527692
Derivative financinl linbilitios
Inlerest rate swiins 100 46 100 46 1346 ’
| 43,725,98 43,725.98 37,828.69 2,066.03 2.431.26 1,404

—
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b}

<)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Liquidity visk (Coniinued)

Exposure to liquidity risk: (Continued)

Contractual cosh Nows

March 31, 2017 Carrying smoumt Total 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-5 yeara Maore than § years

Non-derivative linancinl lisbilities

Borrowings 25,942 80 25,942 55 21,344.24 4,559 43 3888

Trade payables 10,065 66 10,065 66 | 0,065 66

(Oxher financial liaiblitics 267247 267247 267247

Derivative fimancinl liabilities

Interest rale swaps 84,60 84 60 B4 60 - - 7t
38,765.53 38,765.28 34,166.97 4,559.43 38.88 -

The gross inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to derivative financial liabilities held
for risk management purposes and which are noi usually closed out before contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for
derivatives that are net cash-settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simulianeous gross cash settlement,

Currency Risk

The Company is exposed fo currency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company
is Indian Rupee. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting

Exposure fo currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are as below;

March 31,2018 March 31,2018 March 31, 2007 March 31,2017

USD D inated EURCQ D inated  USD D i 1 EURO D inmicd
Finnncial nssets
Trade Receivables 12.260.52 1.295,00 10,001 77 909 56
12,260.52 1,295,600 10,001 77 969 56
Financial liabilitles
Bomrowings 3,985.01 - 6,750.78 .
Trade payables and other financial liabilitics 4,923.50 273.81 10,590.77 |16
8.908.51 273.82 17341 53 | 16
Net exposure 335201 102118 (7339 78) 968 40

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the foreign currencies against [NR at March 31 would have affected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated in US dollars and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit before tax Equily, net of lax
Strengihening Weakenlng Strengthenlog Weakening
Maorch 31,2013
USD (3 % movement ) 100,56 100,56 65.76 65.76
EUR (3 % movement ) 30,64 64 20.04 20,04
131.20 131,20 35,80 85,80
Profit before tax Equity, nel of tax
Effectim INR P Strengihening Wenkening Sirengthening Weakening
Mureh 31, 2007 )
LIS13 {3 % movement ) (22019} 22019 (142 9% 143 99
EUIR {1 % movement } 2005 {2905 1900 {1900)
|
-
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37  Financial risk management {Continued)

d) Interest risk
The group is exposed primarily to fluctuation in USD interest rates. Interest rate risk on financial debt is managed through interest rate swaps.

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows.

March 31,2018 Mareh 31, 2017

Fixed-rate instumens 5,790.91 317039
Yariable-rate instruments 1921641 21,928 16
Total borrowlngs 26,007.32 25,698 55

Financial assets classified at amortized cost have fixed interest cate. Hence, the group is not subject to interest rate risk on such financial assets,

Cash Mow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instrumenis

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
100 bp Increase 100 bp decrease 104 bp Imcrease 100 bp decrense
March 31,2018
Varighle-rate instruments 19216 {192,168} 125.66 (125.66)
March 31,2017
Varinble-rate instroments 219.28 (219.28) 143.39 (143 3%)
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38  Contingent Liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (including taken over under Business Transfer Agresment)
Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Income Tax authoritics 107531 1,044.10
Excise duty 1,89 EON 3
Demand of Rs 352 (out of which Rs. 6 00 paid) raised by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal West Zonal 15.52 15.52
Bench, Mumbai for ¢learance of imported goods under DEPB scheme. (Contravention of the provisions of Section 111 (o) of the
Cusloms Act, 1962)
The claims against the Company comprise of pending litigations / proceedings pertaining to demands raised by Excise, Custom, Sales / VAT tax and
other authorities / bodies, The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are
required and disclosed as contingent lisbilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial resulls,
It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective
proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
39  Commitments
At Asal
March 21, 2018 March 31, 2017
Estimated amount of contracts £ ing lo be ted on capital and nol provided for 1,782.15 647 81
{Net of advances of Rs. 199.78 lakhs, {March 31, 2017: Bs 1041 30 lakhs)
LCs 1ssued in Bavour of suppliers, but the material not dispatched 23494 153 &7
Year ended Period ended
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31,2017
40  Earnings per share
Profit atter tax attributable to equity shareholders [A] 2,890.80 1.954.30
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year [B] 10,000 10,0000
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year [C] 10,000 10,000 00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year [D] 10,000 10,0000
Basic and Diluted eamings per share of face value Rs. 10 [A)/[D] 28,908.00 19.543.00
41  Transfer Pricing

Transactions with related parties are govemed by transfer pricing regulations of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1961 The Company's international and
domestic transactions with related parties are at arm’s length as per the independent accountants report for the year ended March 31, 2017 Management
believes that the Company’s intemational and domestic transactions with related parties post March 2017 continue to be at arm’s length and that the
transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for

taxation :.--_- \ _ %/ %/ \L (\}V’k/
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Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) between the Company, Fairchem Speciality Limited and Privi Organics Limited

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company (the Resulting Company) entered into a Scheme of Arrangement {"the Scheme’} between, Privi
Organics Limited (“POL”) (Demerged Company), Fairchem Speciality Limited (“FSL"formerly Adi Finechem Limited) (parent company of the Resulting
Company) and Adi Aromatic Limited (Resulting Company whose name has since been changed to Privi Organics [ndia Limited or (POIL)). The Scheme
involved demerger of the Aroma Chemical Business of POL (‘Demerged Undentaking’) and transfer to Adi Arematic Limited (now known asPrivi
Organics India Limited or POIL) which is a 100% subsidiary of FSL, a Company whose equity shares are listed and traded on the BSE Limited and e
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as consideration for the Scheme, FSL shall issue and allot to the equity shareholders of POL, for the transfer ol
the Demerged Undertaking, shares in the following proportion

“27 (iwenty seven) equity shares of FSL of Rs. 10 each fully paid up for every 40 (forty) equity shares of POL of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up™; and

“27 (twenty seven) compulsorily convertible preference shares of FSL of Rs. 10 each fully paid up for every 40 (forty) equity shares of POL of Rs, 10/
each fully paid up™.

The Scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT}on February 22, 2017(“Order). The Scheme became effective on March 14,
2017 when the Order approved by the NCLT was filed with the Registrar of Companics, Mumbai. Accordingly, the Scheme has been given effect to in
the financial statements with effect from the appointed date of August 1, 2016.

Pursuant to the scheme ,the following assets and liabilities have been divested into the resulting Company from POL at the same values as appearing in
the books of POL on August 1,2016 being the appointed date , adjusted for the adjusiments referred in Note 3

Pariiculars
Linbilitics

Non-Cnrrent Liahilisies

Long-term bomrowings 6AT053
Dreferred tax liabiicy (Met) 1,100.89
Other long~term liabilitics 0125
Long-term provisions 61575
Currens Lighilitics

Short-term borrowings 2048522
Trade pavables 1555803
Other current liabilities 878381
Shart-term provisions 1.1382)
‘Tetnf Liabililes (A) 54,081.69

Assels

Fiaxed Asseis (Net) 28,5800

Hvestaests

-Non-Current 95917

-Current 1501

Cnirvent Aszeis

~Nan-Current

Long-term loans and advances { Rafer note 3) 216202

Qther non current assets 1,450 14

~Current

Inventories 2043722

Trude receivobles 16,341 (i

Cash and bank balance 1.851 81

Short-term loans and advances 237274

45.614.99

—_—

Totul Asscts{ B} 7512723

Met Asacts (B-A) 21,0M5,54

Amount o lnkhs)

Ea————

—_————y

As mentioned under the Scheme, the excess of the value of assets over the value of liabilities will be treated as gencral reserve. Accordingly, the net
assets of Rs 21,045.54 lakhs has been transferred fo general reserve

The Order also provides that all assets and |iabifities. acgrijedsto POL after the appointed date and prior to the eflective dale in connection with the
Demerged Undertaking shall stand trnnstcm;i { dnd-vestedr in lhl. Resulung Compaony with elfect from the effective date. Pursuant to the Scheme.
money raised in POL towards shares ‘aLllJHLrihtd by arf gaiksting :.i}\.u’ulmk der, post the appointed date, of Rs 14,528,22 lakhs {net of expenses incurred of Rs
471,78 lakhs) has been transferred to the, Rc,sul ting: & any wllh .a-m.d it to the general reserve acpordmgly, Rs. 35,573 76 lakhs has been transferred to
reneral reserves (in the aggregate). = ;
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44

45

46

Subsequent event

On April 26, 2018 a major fire broke out at the Company’s Unit 2 Plant located at MIDC Mahad. There has been loss to assets comprising of
Inventeries, Buildings, Plant & Machinery and other Fixed Assets. The Company is not able to make a reliable estimate of the exact amount of loss,
which would be estimated once the surveyors have completed their assessment. The Company is adequately insured and posl the assessment, the
Campany will file a claim for reimbursement of loss with the insurance Company. Since this is 2 non-adjusting subsequent event, no adjustment has been
made in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018,

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Dividend on equity shares

Dividend on equity shares declaved and paid during the year

Dividend of Rs 2500 per share tor the period ended March 31, 2017 250.00 -
Dividend distribution tax on dividend 50.89
300.89 -
Proposed dividend on equity shares not recognised as liability
Final dividend of Rs 3,750 per share for the year ended 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 Rs 2500 per share) 375.00 250,00
Dividend distribution tax on dividend 77.08 50.89
452.08 300.89

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Mimstry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") through Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 has notitied the following new and
amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not applied as they are eftective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1,2013:

Ind AS LI3 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 21 The effect of changes in Foreigh Exchange rates

Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive standard for entities 1o use in accounting Jur revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115
will supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it becomes eifective

The core principle of Ind AS [ 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services Lo customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thuse goods or services. Specilically, the standard introduces a 3-
step approach to revenue recognition

Step | Identify the contraci(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance ebhgation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as} the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under Ind AS (15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation 1s satisfied, i.e. when "control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation 1s transferred to the customer

The Company has completed its evatuation of the possible impact of Ind AS 115 and will adopt the standard with all related amendments 1o all contracts
with customers retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. Under s
transition method, cumulative cffect of initially applying IND AS (15 is recogntsed as an adjustment to the opening bulance of retuined carnings of the
annual reporting period The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts thal are not completed contracts at the date of mitial apphieation. The
Company does not expect the impact of the adoption of the new standard to be natenal on its retained carnings and to its net \ncoime on an ongoing basis

Ind AS 21 = The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange raies

The wnendment clarities on the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency The
appendix cxplains that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, 15 the date of intial recognition of the non-monetary
prepayment assel or deferred income liability 1f there-are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction 15 established for each puyment
or receipl

Previous year comparative

These financial statements liave been prapared for the period from April:l, 2017 to March 31, 2018, whereas Lhe previous peniod was [rom 8th Jul§ 2016
o March 31, 2017 The corresponding figures for'theprevious year dreiherefore not r.ump:\r\!hlu with those lor the cyrent penod
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= \'



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)
47  Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBN’s)

During the period ended March 2017, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination notes as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R
308(E) dated March 31, 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December
30, 2016, the denomination wise SBN’s and other notes as per the notification given below:

Particulars SBN's* Other denominafion Total
notes
Closing ¢ash in hand as on November 8, 2016 242 500 1,397,284 1,639,884
Transaction between 9 november to 30 december 2016
(+) Parmitted Cash Receipis . 1,766,830 1,766,830
() Penmitted Payments - 1,680,908 1,680,908
(=) Amound deposited in Banks 242 50¢ -
Closing cash In hand a3 on December 30, 2016 - 1,483,306 1,725,806
* For the purpose of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Motes® shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of Lndia, in the Munistry of Finance,
Dep. of E it Affairs ber 3.0, 34GT(E). dated the § Novernber, 2016
For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chariered Accountams Privi OrganicylIndia Limiied
Firm's Registration No: 116231'W/W-100024 /

b ) Vet

Adwait Merwekar Mahiesh le:ylf/ D. B. Rao
Partner Managing Difector Lxecutive Director
Membership No: 110223 DIN: 00051162 . DIN 00356218
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Mumbai Na n §lyer RumeshACathuria
Date : May 08, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Privi Organics India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Privi Organics [ndia
Limited, (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group™), which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements™).

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss (including
other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal  financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group, are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group, to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and maiters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143
(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

V |
B S R & Assoclatas (a partnership firm with Repisterad Office
Registration No. BAG9226) convanted into %th Floor, Lodha Excalus,
B S R & Associates LLP (a Limited Liability, Apolle Mills Compound

Partnership with LLP Registretion No. AAB-8152) N. M. Jashi Marg, Mahalaxmi
with effect from Qciober 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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Auditor's Responsibility (Continued)

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
Group, to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause Group, to cease to continue as a going concert.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and their consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 40 to the financial statements. During the period ended 31 March 2017,
as per the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme approved by the National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT) Order, the Company has credited Rs 35,573.76 lakhs, being the excess of book
value of assets over the book value of liabilities and consideration for equity shares issued, vested
under the Scheme, to the general reserve. Had such accounting treatment not been specified under
the NCLT Order, under the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) adopted by the Company with
effect from | April 2017, restated for the previous period’s figures under Ind AS, the assets and
liabilities would need to be fair valued and the excess of fair value of consideration directly
discharged by the parent company (to be recognized as contribution from the parent directly in
equity) over the fair value of net assets acquired (i.e fair value of assets acquired less fair value of
liabilities (including consideration for equity shares issued)) would be recognised as goodwill and in
reverse case would be recognised in equity as capital reserve. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Y
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Privi Organics India Limited

Other Matters

a)

b)

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial staternents
reflect total assets of Rs. 7,234.92 lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs. 5,584.36 lakhs) and net assets of
Rs. 3,256.80 lakhs as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: Rs. 854.08 lakhs), total revenues of
Rs. 13,784.42 lakhs (31 March 2017: 8,521.34 lakhs) and net cash inflows / (outflows)
amounting to Rs. 117.51 lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs.(58.63) lakhs) for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely
on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Group so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

¢}  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as
on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in [ndia and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Privi Organics India Limited

Report on Other

Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements
as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries as noted in the ‘Other matter’

parag]

4as
nr.

iv.

Mumbai:
8§ May 2018

raph:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has made provisions as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards for any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2018.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well
as dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to
30 December 2016 have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial
year ended 31 March 2018. However amounts as appearing in the audited
consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017 have been

disclosed.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 116231 W/W-100024

ﬁw
Adwait Morwekar

Partner
Membership No. 110223
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Privi Organics India Limited
Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2018

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the period beginning from 1 April 2017 and ending on 31 March 2018, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of Privi Organics India Limited, (hereinafter referred to as
“the Holding Company™) and relied upon reports of other auditors for subsidiary company, which is
a company incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which is
incorporated in India , are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financia! controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of matcrial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Y
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Privi Organics India Limited

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2018
(Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(b)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(c}) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated
in India, have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of auditors of such company. Our opinion
is not qualified in respect of this matter.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 11623 1 W/W-100024

s

Adwait Morwekar

Mumbai Partner
8 May 2018 Membership No: 110223



Privi Organics India Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as ai March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Agat Asal
Nore March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

ASSETS
Non-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 4 32,891.30 29287.37
Capital work-in-progress +4 4,577.36 1,848.07
Intangible assels 5 664,41 34390
Financial assels
Invesiments [ - 19.57
Cther financial assets 7 471,12 1,033.66
Non current tax assets (net) 1,210.51 1.180.75
Other non-current assets ) 565.20 1,814,24
Total non-current assets 40,379.90 1552756
Current assets
Inventories 9 10,349.01 22,299.3]
Financial assets
Investments [ 30017 5402
Trade receivables i6 19,838.07 14,849 58
Cash and cash equivalents I 1,210.39 649.58
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above 12 1,159.68 2,373.84
Other financial assels . 7 984.68 764.29
Oiher current assels 13 3,424.69 2,004 92
Total current assets 47,266.69 42 995 55
Taotal assets 87,646.59 78,523,101
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital ~ 100 1.00
Oiher equity i3 40,562,11 37,214.62
Total equity 40,563,11 37.215.62
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Hi] 6,044.29 4723 19
Provisions 17 79315 675.55
Deefizrred tax liabilities {net) 18 1,414.377 83076
Total non-corrent liabilities 8,252.21 6,229.50
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings it 17,659.09 1843417
Trade payables 19 11,975.92 9,920.48
Other financial liabilities 20 8,281.86 5,866.27
Other current liabilities PH 2145 06 80
Provisions 17 £6.55 4493
Current lax liabilites (net) 556.40 505.34
Total current liabilities 38,831.27 35,077.99
Total cquity and liabilitics 8§7,646.59 78,523 11
Notes to the financial statemenis Yie47
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of cven date attached
For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board ol ‘Jhr;.-cmr-a of

Chartered Accoumants

Firm's Regisirat mﬂ;ﬁ\/lnl} I WAW- 100024

Privi Orpanies fndin Limited

~ A
£ D. B. Rao

© ,"-.'1 Crtive LHreidon

Bl M 0356218

LA
Adwailt Morwekar
Fartner

Membership No: | 10223

\\ .
\
\

\
Mumbai ll:u\\um%ﬂn
Date : May 08, 2013 ¢ ampany Secretan




Privi Organics India Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Jor the pear ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Norve Year eaded Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Revenue from operations 22 78,650.36 42,709.08
Other operating income 23 1,016.65 52017
Qther income 24 1,601.39 1,031.28
Total income 81,268.40 4426053
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed . 25 47,466.57 27,328.48
Changes in inventories of {inished goods and work-in-progress 26 2,927.21 (599.88)
Excise duty 869.83 2,042.46
Employee benefits expense 27 4,383.82 2,387.18
Finance costs 28 1,818.42 1,228.26
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 3,835.99 2,260.44
Other expenses 30 14,402.95 7,542 15
Total expenses 75,704.7% 42,189.09
Profit before tax 5,563.61 2,071.44
Tax expenses
Current tax 1,333.81 524 11
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 585.74 (259.26)
Income tax expense 1,919.55 264.85
Profit for the year {A) 3,644.06 1,806.59
Other comprehensive Income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans {5.01) (31.42)
[ncome tax related to above 1.73 10.87
[tems thal will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences in translating finanical statements of foreign operations 7.60 {0.44)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 4.32 (20.99)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 31,648.38 1,785.60
Earnings per equity share: nominal value of share Rs 10/ each (March 31, 2017: Rs. 10/)
Basic and diluted {Rs.} & 36,440.60 18,065 90
Notes to the inancial statemenis Jwd7
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chariered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 11623 1'W/W-100024

5. e

Adwait Morweliar Aahesh Babani
Partner Managing Director
Membership No. 110223 DIN: 00051162

Mumbai
Date - May 08, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Privi Organics India Limited

i

Executive Director

DIN: 0033562 18

W\,
Rs}n athuria

Compahy Secrerary



Privi Organics India Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: [ndian Rupees in lakhs)

A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Unrealised gain foreign exchange differences
Dividend income
Interest income
Finance costs
Provision for doubtful capital advances
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Fair valuation gain on investments
Fair valuation of borrowings
Operating cash flow before werking capital changes

Adjustment for:

{Increase) / decrease in trade receivables

decrease in inventories

{Increase) in other assets

Increase / {decrease) in trade payables and other current liabilities and provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash generaied from operating actlvities (A)

B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Salef(Purchase) of current investments (net)
Maturity of fixed deposit
Dividend income
Interest received
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

€ Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares (including securities premium)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings {net)
Interest paid
Dividend Paid (Inclusive of Dividend )
Net cash (used in) financing activities { C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents acquired on demerger pursuant to scheme of arrangement
Cash acquired subsequent to demerger {Refer Note 40)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (refer Note 11)

e

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
5,563.61 2.071.44
3,835.99 226044
{173.51) 51018
{0.35) (0.07)
{126.95) {163.14)
1,694.34 1,153.09
36.15 -
{1.60) (1.33)
3.87 (52.79)
15.68 (25.93}
10,845.23 575189
(4,684.91) 25543
1,950.30 42731
(837.03) (32042}
3,152.58 (3,466.92}
{419.06) (3,104.58)
10,426,17 264731
{1,312.71) (1,390.58)
9,113.46 1,256.73
(7.827.81) {3.11417)
5.50 2353
(230.44) ]
1,214.16 25352
0.35 0.07
126,95 163,14
(6,711,29) {4,673.91)
5 100
4,000.00 -
{3,055.36) (1,160.53}
(861.03) (8,189.48)
{1,624.08) {1,239.09}
{300.89) =
{1,841.36) {10,588.10}
560.81 {14,005.28)
649.58
- 126 86
- 14,528.00
1,210.39 649.58

(1 ( ,(\H



Privi Organics India Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued}

Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Note A : The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'

Note B : Reconcillation of net debts

Particulars

Balance as o0 | April 2017

Loan taken during the current year
Repayment during the current year
Foreiyn exchange gain or loss
Impect of effective interest rate

Closing balance

Long Term Borroowing  Short Term Borrowings

7,778.62 18,434.17

4,000.00 -

-3,05536 -861.03
11.59 85.95
15.68

B,751.53 17,659.0%

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accotintants
Firm's Registration No; 11623 1W/W-100024

pos-

Adwait Morwekar
Parimer
Membership No: 110223

Mumbai
Date : May 08, 2018

Habekly Bhbani
Managing Direg

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Privi Organicy India Limited

D. B. Rao
Executive Director
DIN: 00356218

T
1 féhm'in
Company Seeretary




Privi Organics India Limited

Cousolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Corrency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

A.  Equify share eapital

As at As nt
March 31,2018 March 3¢, 2017

Balance at the beginning of Lhe repotting period 100
Changes in equity share capital during the year - 100
Balamce at the end of the reporting period 1.00 1.00
B.  Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Tolal
Foregin Currcacy Gencral Retained
Translation Reserve Earnings
Reserves
Total comprehensive income For the period from Sth July 2016 to March 31,2017
Profit for the year - = 1,806 59 1,806 59
Other comprehensive income (nel of tax) (044) - (2055) {2099)
Total comprehensive income for the year (0:44) - 1,786.04 1,785 60
Trangaction with owners directly recorded in equity
Addinan to peneeal reserve on account of demerger as per NCLT- Refer note 40 35573 76 - 35573 76
Reserves acquired pursuant to demerger {144 Ta) (144 T4}
- 55T 78 {144 74} 3542902
Balance as at March 31,2017 (0 44) 3557376 1,641 30 3721462
Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,2018
Profit for the year - 3,644.06 3,644.06
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 7.60 - (3.28) 4.32
Total Comprehensive Inconte for the year T.60 - 3,640,783 3.648.38
Contribution and distribution te the owners - - -
Dhvidend of Rs 2,500 per share for the period ended March 31,2017 250,00 250,00
Drvidend distribution tax on dividend 50.89 50,89
Balamce ag at March 31,2018 116 35516 4,981.1¢ 40,562.11
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis Privi Organies liflia Limited
Firm's Registration No: 11623 1 W/W-100024 llj‘)
Adwait Morwekar Mdhesl Babani y D. B. Rao
Partner Managing Dire€lor Executive Director
Membership No; 110223 DIN: 00051 [62 \ DIN: 00356218
VN
\ W\

Mumbai
Date : May 08,2018

NarayspfiVer
Chidf Fisgncial

Ra ﬁ;'r:@%uria

Company Secretary



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Jor the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

ii.

Corporate Information

Privi Organics India Limited (‘Privi', or 'the Company') incorporated on 08 July 2016 under
the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 is a public company domiciled in India. These
consolidated financial statements comprise the Company, its Subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group *) and its associates. The Group is primarily engaged in the
manufacture, supply and export of aroma chemicals. The Group's manufacturing units are
located at Mahad and Jagadia. Privi's in-house Research and Development centre has been
accorded recognition by the Department of Scientific and Industrial Research.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The Group’s consolidated financial statements up to and for the period ended March 31,
2017 were prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules,
2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act (‘Indian GAAP’ or ‘IGAAP’). As these are the
first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101 “First -time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’ has
been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group is provided
in Note 3. The consolidated financial statements under Ind AS were authorised for issue by
the Company’s board of Directors on 8 May 2018.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for derivative financial instruments and financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Lakhs of Indian rupees and rounded off to two
decimal values unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

a)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the group has control. The group controls.an -

entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its

power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully:

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The group combines the financial
statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line by adding together like items
of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies ghe

eliminated,
W,




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2

iil,

iv.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

b)  Associates- Equity method of accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in consolidated profit and loss, and the group’s share
of other comprehensive income of the investee in consolidated other comprehensive
mecome.

Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulis may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised and in any future period affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates
and assumptions that have the most significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the
following notes:

(a) Measurement of defined benefit obligations for key actuarial assumptions — Note 33

(b) Recognition of deferred tax assets - Note 18

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption|in, the:

company’s normal operating cycle;
(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(¢) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used /m

settle a liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. /

;{J

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current N}\/

i



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jor the financial year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
iv, Current and non-current classification (Continuned)
Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a) it is expected to be settled in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counter party, result in its settlement by
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. Current liabilities include current
portion of non-current financial liabilities,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents.

V. Functional Currency and foreign operation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian
Rupees 'INR’, which is the presentation currency of the group. The functional currency of
subsidiaries within the group include United States Dollar (USD) and Indian Rupee (INR)

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated from USD at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statement of profit and loss
are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing for the year. The exchange
differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI under Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Vi, Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”} and depreciation

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairments, if -
any. Historical cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related 1o
acquisition and installation. Indirect expenses during construction period, which are
required to bring the asset in the condition for its intended use by the management and are
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its position, are also capitalized.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during ll)b

reporting period in which they are incurred. N\J\ _ / \
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

vi Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE™) and depreciation (Continued)

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the year end.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost of property plant
and equipment, net of residual values, over their estimated useful lives as per the useful life
prescribed in schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of the fotlowing class
of assets where the useful life is based on technical evaluation of the management:

Asset Class Years
Plant and Machinery 10
Furniture & Fixtures 16
Office Equipment 10
Vehicle 1
Computet 6

Fixtures in leasehold premises are amortized over the primary period of the lease or useful
life of the fixtures, whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions / deletions during the year is provided from the month in which
the asset is capitalized up to the month in which the asset is disposed off.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets required under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives (not being greater than the useful life envisaged in Schedule [I of
Companies Act, 2013) unless it is reasonably certain that company will obtain ownership
by the end of lease term, in which case the depreciation rates applicable for similar assets
owned by the company are applied.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

vii, Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible asscts with finitc uscful life are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated
depreciation/ amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties and
other incidental expenses related to acquisition and other incidental expenses.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of respective intangible assets.

Asset Class Years
Computers and Soft wares "N 3106 Years
Rights of Sale of Products y \\ 5 Years
Development Rights 5 Years

bl &?/ A . :
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vii

viii.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets and amortization (Continued)

With regard to internally generated intangible assets:

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of development of new
products or gaining new technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.,

Capital expenditure on research and development is capitalized and depreciated as per
accounting policy mentioned above. Revenue expenditure is charged off in the year in
which it is incurred.

Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products or processes. Development expenditure is capitalised only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to
and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and directly attributable borrowing
costs (in the same manner as in the case of tangible fixed assets). Other development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised in profit or loss over their estimated useful lives, from the
date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of
economic benefits of the asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference beiween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
or a group of assets (cash generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or a group of assets.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its net
selling price. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. If such recoverable
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists. the recoverable amount is reassessed
and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depréciable
historical cost.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to
the respective borrowing. Borrowing costs include inferest costs measured at EIR and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings (other than long term

m T (e
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foreign currency borrowings) to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest

cost.
2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
ix Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset
up to the date of capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost of the assets.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period which they are
incurred.

X, Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the balance
sheet date are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant
exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

xi, Financial Instruments

a. Financial assets

Initial recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three
categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at the amortised cost |f both )
the following conditions are met: : ;

— The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and \ ;

— Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

outstanding, y

/
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss, Thls category/ |/

generally applies to trade and other receivables. W .f{ Y,
LAF
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Xxi

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

a.

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”)

A financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income if both the following conditions are met :

— The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

— Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCIl). However, the Group recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to P&L. The Group did not have any financial assets at
FVTOCI during the current year as well as previous year.

Financial assets at fair value through Profit and loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial
assets which does not meet the criteria of categorizing it at amortised cost or at
FYTOCI is classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
ali changes recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s
balance sheet) when:

— The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

— The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
but has transferred contro! of the asset. L’U\K - L/

>
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

xi Financial Instruments (Continued)

a. Financial assets (Continued)
De-recognition (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In view of its past experience of having insignificant impairment bad-debts / write-
offs and based on management’s estimate considering its portfolio of customers, this
trend would continue for the foreseeable future, the Company has determined that
significant impairment of Financial assets is not required to be recognised based on
Expected Credit Loss model.

b. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
amortised cost and financial liabilities at FVTPL. Derivative liabilities are classified as
FVTPL. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not desmmtod as
hedging instruments.in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,

4
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Xxi

XL,

XL,

xiv.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continuned)

b. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)}

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. Except
derivative instruments, the Company has not designated any financial liability as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities except for derivatives are classified as measured at amortised
cost. This category includes bank and other borrowings, trade payables and other
financial liabilities.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

¢. Offsetting of Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the statement cash flow comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as expense in the Statement-of e

Profit and Loss as per terms of lease agreement. Lease income under an operating lease are
recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss as per the terms of lease
agreement. o

Inverttories

[nventories include raw materials, consumable stores and spares and manufa;lured
inventory. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

B
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Xxiv

XV,

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

Cost comprises the purchase price, costs of conversion and other related costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of raw materials and
consumables packing materials are determined on first in first out basis. Cost of finished
goods and work in progress are determined using the absorption costing principle. Cost
include the cost of material consumed, labour and appropriate proportion of costs of
conversion which include variable and fixed overheads.

Obsolete, defective and unserviceable inventories are duly provided for. The comparison
of cost and net realisable value is made on an item to item basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of
work in progress is determined by reference to the selling prices of related finished
products,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usvally on delivery of the goods,
recovery of consideration is probable, the associates costs and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over or managerial
involvement with the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates, sales tax, Goods and Service tax, value added tax except excise duty.
The Company does not provide any warranties or maintenance contracts to its customers.

Insurance

Income in respect of Insurance and other claim is recognized only on reasonable certainty
of ultimate collection,

Interest

Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method for financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Export incentive

An export incentive is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of export made, and
there is no uncertainty as to its receipt.

Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee
services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include
salaries and wages, bonus, ex-gratia etc. These are recognised as an expense/ut an
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xvi

XVvil.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee Benefits (Continned)

(b)  Post-employment Benefits

@

(ii)

(iii)

Taxation

Provident Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to
pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards employee provident fund to Government administered
provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's
contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The calculation of the Company's obligation under
the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets {excluding
interest) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised in OCI. All expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognised
in employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Compensated Absences

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to
certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain
limits for future encashment/ availment. The Company makes provision for
compensated absences based on an independent external actuarial valuation
carried out at the end of the year,

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Income Tax

Provision for current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable
income for the year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the
taxation authorities, using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates and tax laws.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and estab]is}{cs

provisions where appropriate.

5
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

xvii  Taxation (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Defetred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wiil be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternative tax ("MAT’) under the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961 is
recognized as current tax in the Statement of Profit and loss. The credit available under the
Act in respect of MAT paid is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent it is
probable that the company will pay normal income tax during the year for which the MAT
credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit
recognized as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the :
extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists. y

xviii,  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share are the net

profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders. ﬂf\j\)\ ;,f t
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Xxviif

Xix.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Earnings per share (Continued)

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except
where the results would be anit-dilutive.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a
present obligation that may, probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably.
Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of
outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually
and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic resources embodying economic
benefits will arise, related income are recognized in the year in which the change occurs.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfef
the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

~ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participgnts
act in their economic best interest. /‘

/U\j/ O/'l/
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3 First time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from April 1, 2017, witha
transition date of 8th July 2016 i.¢ the incorporation date of the Company. These financial statements for the year ended 3 1st March, 2018 are prepared by
the Company under Ind AS for the first time.

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 .Since the Company was incorporated on & July 2016, the opening
Ind AS balance sheet does not apply to the Company. In preparing its Comparative Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported
previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as
amended}) and other relevant provisions of the Act {previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the ditferences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101:

A Reconciliation of equity

Asat March 31,2017

Maove Indian GAAP Adjustments on * Ind AS
transitton to (md

ASSETS
|Non-corremt assels
Property, plant end equipment 7 29,299.29 {11.92) 192187137
Capital work-in-progress 1,848.07 - 1,848.07
Intangible assets 343,90 - 343,90
Goodwill 7 144,60 (144.60) -
Financial assets -
Invesiments i 5.7 13,81 19.57
(nher financial assets 103366 - 1,033.66
Mon-current 12x assets (net} 947.07 13367 ¢+ 1.180.75
Other non-current Bss#1s 1L314.24 s 1,814.24

Current assets

Inventories 2229931 - 22290
Finunginl assets

Investnients 1 1501 39.02 54,03
Trade receivables 14,549,389 - 14,849.58
Cash and cagh equivalents 649,58 - 649,58
Hunk balances other than cash and cash equivalents menuioned above 2373.84 a 137384
Other hnancisl assels 764,29 - 764,29
Other currenl assets 2,004,92 - 200492
Totnl #ssets 7839311 130.00 78.513.11
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capitat 1.00 - 1.00
Ofler equity 36,629.81 584,81 3721462
Liabilities -

Non-current liabilities .
Financial labilines :
Barrowings 2 4,749,080 {25.89) 4,723.19

Pravisions 675,55 - 475.55
Deferred tax liabilities (ned) 3 956,13 (12537) 830,76
Current liabilithes

Finencial liabilihes

Borrowings 1843417 - 18,434.17
Trade payables 9,920,485 - 9,920.48
Other finaneial Liabilines 586627 - 5,8660.27
Other eurrent iabalities ) 05,80 - 30680
Mroviions 4493 - 44,93
Current tox ligbihines (net) 808.89 {300.55) 50534
Totul equity and liabilities ] 78,393.11 130.00) 78,523.11

o MaA_. 7/
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B Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the period ended March 31,2017

Period ended March 31,2017
Note ladinn GAAP Adjustments on' Tmd AS
transitlon to Ind AS

Revenue from operations 5 40,666.62 2,042,456 42,709.08
Other operating income 520,17 - 520.17
Orher income L6 918,45 5283 1,031.28
Tolal income 421,165.24 209529 44,260,53
Expenses -
Cosl of materials consumed 1732848 - 1732848
Chamges in nventories of finished goods and work-in-progress {599.88) (599.88)
Exeise duly ¥ - 2,042.46 2042 A6
Employee benefits expense 4 2,418.60 (3L.42) 238718
Finance cosls 26 1,254,19 (25.93) 1,228.26
Depreciation and amoctisati P 1,248.67 .77 1.260.44
Other expenses 134205 - 754215
Twal expenses 40,191.21 1,996.88 42,189.0%
Profit before tax 1,973.03 984l 2,071.44
Tax expenses
Current tax B27.66 (303.55) * 514,10
Delerred 1ax credit(charge) 3 (144.76) (114.50) * {259.26)
Income Lax expense 682,90 (419,05) 264,85
Profit for the year {(A) 1,290,13 51646 1,806,59
Other Comprehensive Income
Tiema that will not be reclassified 1o profil or loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefir plans ) - (31.42) (31.42)
Income 1ax related to above 3 - 10.87 10.87
Exchange diffe n lating finanical of foreign operations 044 a {0.44)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {B) {044} {20.55) (20.99)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 1,289.69 495,91 1,785.60

€ Adjustments to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

There were no material diffrence between the Consolidated Statement of Cashflows presented under Ind AS and the previous year GAAP

D Notes to the Reconciliations

Invesiments

In accordance with Ind AS, financial assets representing investment in equity shares of entities other than subsidaries have been recorded at fair value
through profit or loss. Under the IGAAP, all the investments were measured at lower of the cost or market value.

2 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with interest bearing loans and borrowings are amortised upfront and charged to profit or loss
for the period. Under Ind-AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss
using the effective interest method

3 Deferred Tax
Under Previous GAAP, deferred taxes are recognised for the tax effect of timing differences between accounting profit and taxable profit for the year using
the income statement approach. Under [nd AS. deferred taxes are recognised using the balance sheet approach for future tax consequences of temporary
difterences between the curtying vilue of isseis und liabilities and their respective tax bases The above difference, together with the consequential tax
impact of the other Ind AS transitonal-adjustments lead to temporary differences. For the purposes of the consolidated financial statemes(s. Under Indian

; o . . /
GAAP, no deferred tax asscls was recognised on unrealised profit on the closing inventory Under Ind As, the same is required to be recogiised. |
- ,f)




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

1]

-

Notes to the Reconclllations (Continited)

Provision for employee benefits expenses

Both under IGAAP and Ind A8, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under IGAAP, the
entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurement gain and loss (actuarial gains and fosses on
defined benefit obligation and the plan assets) are recognised immediately through OCL. Thus, the employee benefit cost is reduced and Remeasurement
gains/ losses on defined benefit plans has been recognized in the OCT net of tax.

Excise Duty

Under IGAAP, sale of goods was presented as net of excise duty. However, under Ind AS, revenue from sale of goods is presented inclussive of excise
duty. Excise duty on sale of goods is separately presented on the face of statement of profit and loss as an expense. Thus sale of goods under Tnd AS has
ncreased with a coresponding increase in other expense

As discussed in Note 40, the assets and liabilities include those acquired pursuant to the demerger effective on 1 August 2016, Therefore, the adjustment on
transition to Ind AS include the impact for the peried from 1 August 2016 to March 31,2017 and also the impact of the essets and liabilities acquired by the
demerged company prior to the acquisition date. This include the impact towards fair valuation of investment of Rs 36.46 Lakhs and fair valuation of
borrowing by Rs 39 79 Lalchs, being for the period prior to the acquisition date of | August 2016.

As per Indian GAAP, the difference between the cost of the investment and the equity of the subsidiary on the acquisition date was disclosed as goodwill.
Under Ind AS, since the assets acquired do not constitute a business, hence the acquisition is reported as an asset acquisition, Consequently, the reserves of
the acquiree Company on the acquisition date has been considered as pre-acquisition reserves.

Reconciliation of equity

Particolar Note Amounl

Net worth under TGAAP (A) 36,629.81

Summary of Ind AS adjustments
Investment recognised at fair value t 52.83
Reversal of goodwill recognised under indian GAAP ? {144.60)
Impactof depreciation on the revalued portion of the fand and building 7 (11.92)
Loan arrangement fees amortised on EIR basis 2 2559
Deferred tax on unrealised profit elimination 3 123.82
Rectification of error in the tax provision = §37.24
Deferred tax on above adjustiments 3 L.55
Total Ind AS adjusiments (B) 584.81

Net worth under Ind AS (A+B) 37,214.62

Prior period error in tax provision

During the cwrrent year, the Company has revised its return of income for the years ended 31 March 2016 {pertaining to Privi Organics Limited - the
demerged company) and 2017 towards deduction under section 32 AC of the Income tax Act, 1961 not claimed by it in those years erroneously and other
errors in the tax depreciation calculation. Consequent impact of Rs 303 55 lakhs has been credited to current tax and net impact of Rs 6.45 lakhs is credited
to deferred tax for the year ended March 31,2017. Further, Rs 233.67 lakhs has been adjusted against the general reserve for the year 2016, pursuant to the
requirements of the NCLT order dated 22 February 2017 relating to the Scheme of demerger (refer note 40). The cormresponding impacts has been
rnnsiderad noder enrrent tax liabiliting and deferrad tax assat! liability

L
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continsed)
as at March 31, 2618

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

6 [nvestments

A. Non carrent investments

Investment in equity instruments (quoted )

Fair value through profit and loss

5 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Indusind Bank Ltd.
9,940 equity shares of Rs. 2 each of Bank of Baroda
5,000 equity shares of PNB Gilts Ltd. of Rs. [0 each

B. Current investments

Trade (unquoted)

Investments in mutual funds;

Principal emerging bluechip fund-Growth

36292 058 units and 199 fractions face value of Rs 10
Reliance equity fund

13,189 Units and 69 fractions face value of Rs 2.50
Reliance growth fund

1063 units and 20 fractions face value of Rs 2.50
IDFC-Cash-DDR Fund

29967 units and 50 fractions of face value of Rs 10

Total {A+B)

Aggregaie amount of quoted investments
Market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments

7 Other financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non-current

Investments in term deposits (with remaining maturity of more than twelve months}
Security deposits

Total {A)

Currenl

L.oans and advances to employees
Unutilised export incentives licences
Total {B)

Total {A+B)

As at As al

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

- 007

- 1593

= 3.57

- 19.57

- 3283

10 90

- 10 30
300.17

300,17 54.03

300.17 7360

19 57

. 19 57

A7 5403

- 63128

471.12 402 38

471.12 1,033.66

4799 3051

936.69 733178

984.68 764 29

1,455.80 |,797.95

Il
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
as af March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Other non-curvent assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances

Cansidered good

Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful advances

Deposit with custom authority
Prepaid Expenses

Balance with excise authority
Vat/Sales Tax Receivable

Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials {including goods in transit Rs. 3,770.23 lakbs (P.Y. Rs 3,535.95 lakhs)
Finished goods (including goods in transit Rs. 1,805 74 lakhs (P Y.: Rs. 730.31 lakhs)
Work-in-progress

Stores and spares

Packing material

Fuel

Trade Receivables
{Unsecured unless otherwise stated)

Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Refer note 35 for information about credit risk and market risk of trade receivables.
The movement in allowance for bad and doubtful debts is as follows:

Balance as at beginning of the year
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year
Trade receivables written off during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash on hand

Remittance in transit

Balances with Banks

In current accounts

Earner exchange foreign currency account

‘T'ermn deposits (with original maturity ol less than thiee months).

As at As st
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
184.68 1,156.98
36.15
(36.18) -
1834.68 1,156.98
55.37 6.00
40,75 106.69
15,95 28421
268.45 260 36
565.20 1,814 24
7,583.09 6,404 61
5633.39 4,983.54
6,578.23 10,359 86
270,22 25388
64.07 78.14
220.01 21928
29,349.01 2229931
19,838.07 14,849 58
10.86 10 86
(10.86) (10.86)
19,838.07 14,849 58
10.86 10.86
10.86 10 86
376 319
28212
519.70 195.42
134,92 .
269.8% 450 97
1,210.39 649 58

W



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

12

13

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Margin money deposits {with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months)

Earmarked balances with banks
-Unpaid dividend

Note : Margin money deposit amounting to Rs 303.92 Lakhs are pledged with banks for non cash limits and
term deposit Rs.505.15 Lakhs are pledged as cash security with banks for the loans taken by the Company.

Other current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

Receivable fiom government authorities
Advance for supply of goods and services
Prepaid Expenses

Vat / Sales Tax receivabe

Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1,159.68 2,373.57

- 0.27

1,159.68 2,373.84
2,578.17 1,355.51
638.44 521.44

11%.27 70.89

91.81 57.08

3,424.69 2,004.92




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

as at March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
14  Share Capital
Authorised:
10,000 (as at March 31, 2017 : 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00
Issued, Subseribed and Paid up:
10,000 (as at March 31, 2017 : 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
1) Reconciliation of the number of shares
Dreseription As at March 31,2018 Ay at March 31,2017
Number Amount Number Amouni
Sheres ding at the beginning of the year 10,000 1.00 -
Add: Shares issued during the year - - 19,000 100
Shares owstanding at the end of the year 10,000 100 10,000 100

b}  Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of eqility shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regards to dividends and share in the company’s residual
assets. The equity shares are entilted to receive dividend es declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll {not on show
of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any

call or other sums presenlty payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of

all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

t) Shares held by Holding Company

As at March 31,2018 As ot March 31, 2017
Number Amount Number Amount
Fairchem Speciality Limited 10,000 1.00 10,00¢ 100
{Formerly known as Adi Finechem Limited)
d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares
As at March 31, 2018 As af March 31,2017
Number k3 Number e
Furchemnt Speciality Limited 10,000 100% 10,000.00 100%%




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2018

{Currency: [ndian Rupees in lakhs)

Other equity
General reserve

Retained Earnings
Foreign Currency translation reserve

Retained Earnings:-

As at Asal

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
35,5776 35,573.76
4,981.19 1,641 30

7.16 (0,44}
40,562.11 3721462

Retained eamings represent the amount of accumulated eamings/ (losses) at each Balance Sheet date of the Group, prepared in accordance with the basis

of preparation section

General Reserve
Refer Note ; 40

Defined benefit plans actuarial gains/(losses) accumulated in retained earnings, net of tax

Particulurs

Defined benefit plans acroarial gains/(losses)
As at Mareh 31,2017
Defined benefil plans acruarial gains/{losses)
As ar March 31,2018

Actuarial Gainflosy
(20.55)

(201.55)

(3.28)

(13.83)

Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the

The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that mi

and security afforded by a sound capital position

ght be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages

The company montiors capital using Debt-Equity ratio. For this purpose, debt is defined as total liabilities comprising interest bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents (including current investments), Equity comprises all components of Equity.

The Company's debt equity ratio as at March 31, 2018 was as follows:

Particulars

Total Debr
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and short lerm mvestments
Ner Liabilities {A}

Equity {B)

Debt - Equity Ratie

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007
26,410,62 2315736
237007 3,023 42
24,040,585 20,131 94
H0,563.11 37,215 62
0.5% 054

e



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
as al March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)
16 Borrowings

A. Non-current borrowings

Term Loans from banks (secured)

Term loan in Indien currency

Term loans in forsign currency

Vehicle loan { hypothecated with the lender)

Cibers (vnsecured)
Deferred Safes Tax Loan
Loan from Drepartment of bictechnology and Ciher (Fefer Mote d below)

Non-current portlon Curreat portlon (*}

Merch 31,2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31,2007
4,197.22 E D] 166.00 166.00
1,541.27 401287 243,74 2,778.41

14 ™m 5463 1094
150.42 235.97 B5.63 03.84
153.24 15948 6.24 624

6404429 4,723.19 1,707.24 3,05543

2)  Term loan are secured by a first mortgage on the Company's immovable properties both present and future ranking peripassu interse and a first charge by
way of hypothecation of all the Company's assets (save and except book debts and inventories) including movable machinery (save and except spares tools
and accessories) both present and future subject to charges created in favour of the Company's bankers for inventories, book debts and other specified

movable assets for securing the borrowings of Working Capital .

b)  Terms and repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of cutstanding borrowings are as follows:

Name of the Bank Currency Imteresi Rate
Bank of Baroda INR 11.20%
| Stanadartl Chartered Ban USD 575%
DBS Bank usp & 1%
RBL Bank WCTL UsD 6.00%
RBL Bank FCTL usD IMLibor+5 25%
IDFC Bank INR 8.60%

Year of Maturity

2020

2014

2018

2019

Installment

Repayable in 20
quaterly installments
of Rsd4150 lakhs
Starting from June
2015

Repaysble in 14
quarterly
mataliments of USD
3LA57.14 sach
starting  from July
HWils

Rapayshle in 14
quarterly
mstallents of USD
500,000 each
starting from
September 2012
Repayable in 7

siaggering quarterly
installments of USD

205329.34 each
starting from
October 2016
Bepayable in 35
quarterly

inmallments of USD
319.233.84 each , 10
quacterly
installments of USD
399,042 30 each
(total L5
instaliments) starting
from March 2016,

Repayable in 20
quaterly inmallments
of Rs200 Iakhs
Starting from Mar
2020

Carrying amount s e

March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
37350 514.00
2,044.24 3,036,567
32419

3N 78257
1,547,352 2,587.00

4,000,040




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Confinited)

as at March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

16  Borrowings (Continued)

A. Non-current borrowings (Continued)

¢} Package Scheme of Incentive permits the company to accumulate the sales tax collected from its customers in respect of goods produced at Mahad
factory Sales tax collected each year is repayable in five equal yearly installments after ten years from the year of collection. Qutstanding amount is
repayable in annual installments till April 2022 from the date of reporting date
Sales Tax Deferral Loan is interest free. Current maturity of Sales Tax Deferral Loan of Rs. 85,63 lakhs as disclosed under "Other current laibilitics™ {
2017 ; 93.84 lakhs)

d)  This is towards Grant-in-aid and loan received from the Department of Biotechnology, Ministry of Science & Technology under Small Business
Innovation Research Initiative {SBIRI) scheme for “Enzyme Catalyzed Manufacture of esters” The aid is received in the form of loan Rs. 18.72 lakhs for
tunding the man-power costs in relation to the research and development project. The loan is repayable to the Government in ten equal yearly instalments
starting from March 2011 During the year Grant-in-aid and loan received from Biotechnology Industry Research Assistance Council amouting to Rs 117
lakhs for the project entitled Pilot Scale Transiation Facility For the ¥alue added chemicais From Biomass. Also another Grant-in—aid and loan received
Irom Indo-German Science and Technology Center amounting Rs. 30 Lakhs for the project on design of selective nanoporous membrane bioreactar for
eflicient production of bio-butanol from lignocellulosic suears

Asat Asal
March 31,2018 March 31. 2017
B.  Current berrowings (secured)
Cash credit 7,840.47 8,837 47
Packing credit 6,432.75 6,907 99
Buyers credit 3,370.59 2,565.07
Book overdraft 15.28 12324
Total 17,659.09 18,434 17
All the above loans are secured by first pari passu charge on all current assets of the Company both present and future,
Working Capital Loans from banks are secured by way of hypothecation of inventories both on hand and in transit and book debts and other receivables
both present and future and also secured by way of second charge on fixed assets Working capilal loans carry interest rate @ 8.5% to 9 5% and arc
payable on demand.
Post shipment and packing credit from bank carry interest rate @ 1 50% to 4 08% and are due for payment within |30 days

17  Provisions

Non-Current Current
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Provisions for emplayee benefits

Compensated absences 198.65 181 63 23.49 1662
Giratuity 394,50 493 92 33.06 BN
79315 67555 56.55 4493

/"



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Year ended Period ended
March 31,2018  March 31,2017

18 Income Tax

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are:
Current income tax;

Current 1,333.81 524.11
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 585.74 {259.26)
Income tax expense reporded in the statement of profit or loss 1,919.55 264.85

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Tax expense related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan (1,73) {10.87)

Income tax charged to OCI (1.73) {10.87)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the nccounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March
31, 2018 and March 31, 2017;

Accounting profit before income tax 5,563.61 2,071.44
At [ndia’s statutory income tax rate of 34.61% (March 31, 2017 34.61%) 1,925.57 716.93
MAT credit entitlement - {324.95)
Section 35 (2 AB) {103.42) (137.79)
Exempt income (21.46) -
Non deductible expenses 89.52 2.63
Otbers 27.61 2.84)
Total 1.917.82 253.98
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,517.82 253.98
Asat  Crediticharge)in  Crediti{charge) In On accsnni of Asat
1 April 2017 the Statement of Qiher Buslness 31 March, 2018
Profit emd Loss Compreheasive Comblimatlon
Imcone
Deferred tax (aseetallabllities
Provision for doubtful debts and advences (7.46) - - - {746)
Exp allowable for tax purposes when paid (268 40) (26 79) (173} . (296,92)
Tux depreciation 1,69033 25636 - = 1,946.69
Fair value (gains)losses 8956 (541) = = 355
Mat credit entitlement (464.78) a1 37 - - (153.41)
Unrealised profin on siock (123 82) 5591 - - (674971)
Revaluation reversal (4.07) (3.7 - (977
83076 585,74 (L.7Y - ]I A7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2018

(Currency: [ndian Rupees in lakhs)

18

19

20

21

Income Tax (Continied)
Asat Creditt{charge) in  Crediti(charge} In On account of Aaat
Hih July 2016 the Statement of Other Business 31 March, 2017
Profit and Lose Comprehenalve Comblnathon
Income
Daferred tax (assets)/llablliles -
Provision foc doubtful debrs and edvences (746} (T 40)
Expenses aliowable for 1ax purposes when paid - 27.66 {10.87T) (285.19) (268.40)
Ty depreciation 296,79 . 1,393.54 1,690 33
Fuir vales (gains)losses 896 8.9
Mat credi entitlement - (464.78) - (464.74)
Unrealised peofit-on stock - {122.82) e {12382)
Revaluation reversal (4.07) (4 um
(259 26) (10.87) 1,100.89 830 76
Asat As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Trade Payables
Trade payables
Ta Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises * E =
To Oihers 11,975.92 9,920.48
11,975.92 9.920.48
* On the basis of information and records available,there are no outstanding dues and
outstanding intrest on dues to micro and small enterprise,
The Company's exposure to credit and currency and Jiquidity risk related to trade payables are
disclosed in Note 35,
Other financial liabilities
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 113.70 4344
Payable for capital expenditure 2,546.53 860.82
Salaries, wages and bonus payable 615,84 3324
Deposits 0.25 0.25
Payable for Expenses 2,297.84 1,508.49
Derivative Instrumnenis 100.46 84.60
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 16 A) 2,707.24 3,05543
8,331.86 5,866.27
The Company's exposure to credit and currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial
ligbilities are disclosed in Note 35.
Other Current Liabilities
Statutory dues (including provident fund, tax deducted at source and others) 121.65 306.80
Advance from customers 79.50 -
201.45 306.80

f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

22 Revenue from operations

Sale of Products 78,650.36 42,709.08

78,650.36 42,709.08

23 Other operating revenue

Export incentives 1,016.65 481.87
Job work charges - 3830
1,016.65 520.17

24  Other income

Interest income from fixed deposits 126.95 163.14
Gain on write-back of Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 21.04 9275
Dividend income 0.35 007
Gain on sale of tangible assets 1.60 1.33
Fair value changes in investments measured at FVTPL 3.87 5279
Miscellaneous income 42.28 15.39
Foreign currency fluctuations gain, net 1,405.30 705.81

1,601.39 1,031.28

25 Cost of materials consumed

Raw material consumed

Opening Stock 6,404.61 .

Stock acquired on demerger - 7.335.08
Add: Purchases 47,279.42 25,546 78
Less: Closing Stock 7,583.09 6,404 61
Consumption 46,100.94 26,47725

Pacling material consumed

Opening Stock 78.14 -
Stock acquired on demerger - 60.56
Add: Purchases 1,351.56 868.81
Less: Closing Stock 64.07 78 14
Consumption 1,365.63 85123
47,466.57 2733848

”
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: indian Rupees in lakhs)

26

27

28

29

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in- progress

Closing stock:
Finished goods
Working in Process

Opening stock:
Finished goods
Working in Process

Stock acquired on demerger
Finished goods
Working in Process

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Finance cost

Interest on term loans

Less: Interest capitalized

Net interest on term loans
Interest on working capital loans
Interest on other loans

Other Finance cost

Interest on delayed payment of income tax

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Year ended Period ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017

5,633,39 4,983.54
6,578.23 10,359.86
1221162 15,343.40
4,778.97 .
10,359.86 ;
15,138.83 :
. $,905.55
: 8,837.97
2 14,743.52
2,927.21 (599 88)
3,799.72 2,080.22
254.31 121.92
320.79 185.04
4,383.52 238718
44591 370.13
(51.45) (59.41)
394.46 310.72
1,299.88 693.20
1.58 123.24
84.08 73.78
38.42 27.32
1,318.42 1,228.26
3,783.01 2,188.50
52.98 71.94
3,835.99 2,260.44

@%/ W, mﬁ/
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

30 Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Excise duty related 1o (decrease) / increase in inventory of finished goods
Power and fuel

Job work Charges

Repairs and maintenance of’
Buildings

Plant and machinery

Others

Contract labour charges
Lease expense

Research and development
Pollution control expenses
Other factory expenses
[nsurance

Postate and Telephone

Rates and taxes

Training Expenses

Auditors remuneration;
Statutory audit

Out ot pocket expenses
Other services

Brokerage & Commission
Printing and stationery
Freight outward

Selling and distribution
Legal and professional fees
Travelling and conveyance
Bank charges

CSR expenses

Sundry balances wioft’
Provision for doubtful advances
Miscellaneous expenses (net)

a) In-house research and development expenses

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
0624.08 38527
- 1947
5,359.07 267219
801.49 50225
121.5% K
473.25 27288
160,17 60.28
629.43 428.01
45.22 27.50
597.63 98 14
196.78 8228
328.12 145.58
75.85 49.26
62.87 4747
63.35 28.72
8.52 13.23
45.50 44 74
4.42 -
3.65 265
84.86 7410
40,70 22.04
2,214,19 771.32
624.11 261.00
546.84 27511
448.74 261.18
J45.60 296 34
2521 1810
20.41 19.06
36.15 =
415.19 29975
14,402.95 7,542 15

The details tota) revenue expenditure (net of recoveries) on Research and Development (R&D) eligible for weighted deduction under section

35(2AB} of the Income Tax Act, 1961 are given below.

Revenue Expenditure

Salaries and wages

Material consumables/ spares

Other expenditures directly related to R&D

Total

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
396.33 306,47
61.78 48 24
139.47 4343
597.63 398.14




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)
30  Other expenses (Continued)

b) Corporate social responsibility

The Company has spent Rs. 25.21 lakhs {Previous year : Rs. 18.10 lakhs)} towards various schemes of Corporate Social Respansibility as prescribed

under section §35 of the Companies Act, 2013, The details are:

1 Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: Rs. 42.00 takhs (Previous period ; Rs. 31.03 lakhs)

2 Amount spent during the year on:

In cash/payable Yot to be paid
o cush
{i) ConstructionfAcquisition of any asset
(i1} For purposes other than (i) above 2521
{18.10)
(figures in brackets pertain to previous year}
€) Lenses as lessee
The future minimum lease payments and payment profile of non-cancellable operating leases are as under:
i. Future minimum lease payments
At March 31, 2618 the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows,
Year ended Perlod ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Less than one year 49,56
Belween one and five years §7.69 3532
More than five years 25 27
13725 286 59
{i. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Year ended Period ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Lense expenses 4522 2750
4522 2750

Py 7



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

3

Segment Information

A

o

Factors used to identify the entity's reportable segments, including the basis of organisation

For managemnt purposes, the Company has determined its reportable segment s "Aromatic chemicals” since the chief operating decision maker (
CODM) evaluates the Company's performance as a single segment,

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Iuformation about reportable segments

Revenue 78,650.36 42.709.08

78,650.36 42.709.08

Geographic information

The geographic information analyses the Company's revenue and non-current asseis by the Company's country of domicile and other countries. In
presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and segments assets were based
on the geographic location of the respective non-current assets,

The product offerings which are part of the speciality chemicals portfolio of the Company are managed on a worldwide basis from India.

The amount of the group’s revenue is shown in the table below,

Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

India 23,091.20 13,702.13
Outside India 55,559.16 29,006.95
Total 78,650.36 42.709.08

All the non-current assets of Company are located within India.

Information about major customers

Revenues from thee major customers represented approximately RS 5767.37 lakhs.(Previous period :-5,060. 68 lakhs) and Rs 4,057.36 lakhs
{Previous period :-3,144,,89 lakhs) and Rs.2690.97 { Previous period 2411.39 lakhs) of the Company’s total revenues.

/
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Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contineed)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: [ndian Rupees in lakhs)
32 Related party disclosures

2) List of Reiated Parties

Related parties where control exist:

Holding Company
Fairchem Speciality Limited

Associate Company
Minar Organics Private Limited (up to 21-03-2018)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel of their relatives
Vivira Chemical [ndustries

Vivira Chemicals Private Limited

Privi Life Science Private Limited

Babani [nvestment and Trading Private Limited

Satellite Technologies Private Limited

Vivira Investment and Trading Private Limited

Babani Bros. LLP

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Mahesh P. Babani {(Managing Director)
Mr. D. B. Rao (Executive Director)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. D, Vinay Kumar

b) During the year, following transactions were carried out with the reiated parties

Key Management Personnel
and thelr refatlves

Holding Company Assoclates Enterprises owned or
signlficandy influenced by key
management pereonnel or their
relatives
Muarch 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2057 March 31,2008 March 31,2017
Transactions
Parchase of vaw materlals
Privi Life Science Pvt Ld - . . 22.40 656
Sule of Ninished goods
Privi Life Science Pvt Ltd - 1 - - 21.78 1519
Remi, bense and hire (expense)
Miner Organies Pvt Ltd 5 . 15.00 6.00
¥ivira Chemicals Pwt Ltd - . - - 12,00 4.00
Rent, lease and hire (Income) - .
Minar Organics Pyt Ltd 3 4 03¢ 020
Privi Life Science Pvt Lid - - . . 12,00 800
Vivira Chemicals Pwi Ltd . - * . 030 0.20
Managerlal reameration
D.B Reo . " - - - 90,00 5350
Mahwsh P Babani - . - - - - 108,00 61 85
Sale of Investment . . - - . - 3
Mahesh P Babani » . - - - - 1439
Relmb of exp
Fairchem Speciality Limited 1875 a ] . . -
Sainry psid
D Vinaykumar 1835 1143

*Remuneration does not include charge fin sratuity and I¢ave encashment as employee-wise break up is not available




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

32 Related party disclosures (Continued}

b)  During the year, following transactions were carried out with the related parties : (Continued)

Partleulars Holding Company Assoclates Enterprises owned or Key Mansgement Personng]
glgnificantly Infuenced by ey
mansgement personnel or thelr
relutives
March 31,2018 Merch 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 312017 March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Reclevables { Other current asseis

¥ivira Chemicals Fvi Lid - - = . 1.38 1.02
¥ivira Chemicals Indusiries e | e . 0.51 0351
Privi Life Science Private Limited . - = . 8248 49 65
Minac Organics Pvt Ltd . - 0.84 .49

Trade Payables
Privi Life Science Pyt Lid . ] - - 1558 23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)
33 Employee benefits - Post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards
Provident Fund, and ESI which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified

contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss as they accrue,

The Company has recognised the following amount as an expense and included in the Note 27 under “Contribution to provident & other

Contribution to employees provident fund
Contribution to ES]

b) Defined benefit plans

Year ended
March 31, 2018

220.74
1.09

Period ended
March 31, 2017

120.06
6.27

The Company operates one post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has
rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of
retirement. In case of employees completing longer service periods, the Company’s scheme is more favourable as cotnpared to the obligation

under Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity

Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation at the end of the year
Fair value of the plan assets

Net liability

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation
Liability on account of demerger

Opening Defined Benefit Obiligations

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Past service cost

Closing defined benefit obligation

As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
627.56 522.23
627.56 522.23
Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
522.23 414,32
65.63 69.37
37.86 32,11
5.01 3142
(31.78) (24.99)
28,61 -
627.56 522.23

f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the vear ended March 31, 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

33 Employee benefits - Post-employment benefit plans (Continued)
b} Defined benefit plans (Continued)
Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 65.63 69.37
Interest on defined benefit obligations 37.86 3.1
Past service cost 28.61 -
Total 132,10 101.43
Remeasurements recognised in OQther comprehensive income
Change in financial assumptions (18.62) -
Experience adjustments 23.63 3142
Actual retum on plan assets less interest on plan - -
Total 5.01 31.42
Total expense recognised 137.11 132.90
- As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date
Discount rate {p.a.) 7.56% 7.25%
Expected rate of Salary increase (p.a.) 8.25% 8.25%
Adtrition Rate 30 and Below : 30 and Below :
12% 12%
31to 40 Years: 31to40 Years: 8%
8% 41 to 50 Years: 3%
41 to 50 Years: 51 andabove: 1%
5%
51 and above : 1%
Mortality Tables Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)

The estimates of future salary increase , considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Estimated rate of return on plan assets is based on average long term rate of return expected on investiments of the Fund during the estimated
term of the obligations.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Discount rate Future salary increase
March 31,2013 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Inipact on defined benefit obligation due to;
a 1% increase (52.11) 4587 £9.06 52.03
ls. 1% decrease 60,06 5307 {52.15) (45.87)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result
of reasonable changes in key assumptions ocowting ut the end of the reporting period, as calculated by Actuary

@Qf W
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33

b)

Employee benefits - Post-employment benefit plans (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continned)

Experience adjustment for last two™ years

Defined benefit obligation

Plan assets

{deficit)

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities

Experience adjustment on plan assets

(*) Company has been in existence for two years only.

%

March 31, 2018

627.56

(627.56)

23.63

March 31, 2007
52223
(522.23)

3142
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34  Financial instruments
a.  Accounting classification and fair values

The Group is exposed to the risks of changes in fair value of its financial assets and liabilities. The following table summarises the fair values and carying
amounts of financial instruments.

Muarch 31,2018 Muarch 312017
Carrying value Fair value Carrying valee Fair valug
Fimancinl nascts measured st fair value
Invesiments 30047 300,17 7360 7360
Financinl assets measured at amortised cost
I m lerm deposi 1,159.68 1,159.68 3,004.85 3,004 85
Secunity deposits 471,12 47112 40218 40238
Other assels 984.66 984,68 764.29 764 29
1915.65 2,915.65 4,245 12 4,245 12
Fi Hal liabilitles ed at fair valoe
Derivalives - forwerd contracts and interest swops 100,46 100.46 84 60 84 60
100,46 100.46 84.60 84 60
Financial liability measwred at amortised cost
Borrowings 23,703.39 23,703.38 23,151.36 23,157 36

Note

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables, trade payables and other financial liabilities have fair values that approximate 10 their
carrying amounts due to their short-term nature.

b.  The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in nole (a) above have been classified into a three categories depending on the inputs used in the
valuation technique.

The categories used are as follows:
Level | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indireetly (ie
derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)

Level Level IT

March 31208 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2087
Finamcial assets at fair value through profit or loss: - L]
Investments - 19 57 300,17 5403
18.57 300,17 5403

Fivamcinl Linbflitics at fair value through profit or loss:
Dervatives - forward contracts and interest swaps 100,46 84 60
100,46 B4.60

There were no sigmficant changes in classification of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities There were also no significant movements

between the fair value hierarchy classifications.
/
W Nid
SN




Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended Muarch 34,2018

{Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

34

(i

(ii}

(iii)

{iv)

Finauncial instruments (Continued)
Calculation of fair values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used
for the year ended March 31,2017,

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments has been determined using valuation techniques with market observable inputs. The models
incorporate various inputs including the credil quality of counter-parties and foreign exchange forward rates.

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (*NAV") as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the
published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which
issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

Loans and borrowings have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts as it is based on the net present value of the anticipated future cash flows
using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, eredit risk and remaining maturities.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments in term deposits, other financial assets {except derivative financial instruments), trade payables,
and other financial liabilities (except derivative financial instruments) have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts dug to their short-ferm
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38

a)

b)

Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from the financial instruments:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial
assets represent the maxmimum credit exposure.

Impairment of Trade receivables

At March 31, 2018, the ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired was as follows.

Carrying amownt
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Neither past due nor impaired 15,036.68 10,434 34
Past due 0-90 days 4,730.68 3.786 24
Past due 90-180 days S1.03 50577
Past due 180-270 duys %.74 8730
Past due 270-360 days 294 1577
More than 360 days - 2016
19,638.07 14,849 58

Movement in the impairment provisions

Amount|

Agquired i the business combmation 10 86
Impairment loss recognised

Amounts written off -
Balance as al March 31,2017 10 86
Impairment loss recognised

Amounts written off -
Balance a9 at March 31,2018 10,86

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour
and extensive analysis of customer credit risk and the current provision for the bad debts represents the impacied credit Joss it forsees in its recievables,

Financia) assets other than trade receivables are not impaired and further, there are no amounts that are past due. Management believes that the amounts are
collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidiry is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

Exposure to liquidity rish:

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements,

Contractual cash flows
March 31,2018 Carrying amonnt Total | year or less 1-2 years 2-5years  Moreiban 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Term loans from banks 4,751.53 8,751.53 2,600.52 2,085,123 1,697.78 1,400.00
Short Term borrowings 17.659.09 17,659.09 17.659.09
Trade payables 11,975.92 11,975.92 11,975.92
Other finaneial Himblities E574.16 5,574.16 5,574.16
Derivative linanginl
Forward contragls and inferesf rate 3yvaps 100.46 100,46 100,46 ]
4 44,061.16 44,061.16 AT918.15 l,th%ﬁu".ﬂ‘\ Y .‘..W.Ts I !_1 Aopdi

L -

WN YV  Alw— Y



Privi Organics India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

35

b)

)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Caontractual cash flows
March 31, 2007 Carrying anonnt Total | year or beas 1-2 years 2-5years  More than % years

Non-derivative fimanctal liabilities

long 1erm borrowings 4,751 53 8,751.53 2,940.01 2,811.86 2,930.66 47 00
Short 1erm borrowings 18,434 17 i8,434.17 18,434.17
Trade payables 992048 992048 9.920.48 - - -
Other financial laiblities 2,726.24 2,726 24 2,726.24
Derivative financial
Forward contracts and interest rals swaps B4.60 84,60 B4 60 . -

IB9T02 3991702 34,105.50 283186 2,930 .66 a7 00

The gross inflows/(outflows} disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to derivative financial liabilities held for
risk management purposes and which are not usually closed out before contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for derivatives that
are net cash-settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simultaneous gross cash settlement,

Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to cusency risk on account of its borrowings and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company is
Indian Rupee. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date.
Exposure to currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are as below:

March 31,2018 March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 March 31,2017

USD v Inated EURO D inated  USD D inated EURO D inmied
Financial assets
Trade Recevables 12,260,52 1,295.00 10,001 17 969 56
12.260,52 L 295,00 10,001 717 969 56
Financial liabilities
Bommowings 3,985,01 “ 6,750.78
Trude payables and other financial liabilities 4,923.50 273.82 10,590 37 16
8,908.51 273.82 17,341 55 |18
MNet exposure 3352.01 1021.18 (7,339 74) 958 40

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening} of the foreign currencies against INR at March 31 would have affected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated in US dollars and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounis shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit before tax Equity, net of tax
Sirengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
March 31,2018
LISD (3 % movement ) 100.56 (L00.56) 65.76 {65.76)
EUR (3 % movement ) 30.64 {30,64) 20.04 {20.04)
13120 (131200 35.80 (B5.80)
Profit before (ax Equity, et of tax
Effect in INR Strengthening Weakeming Strengthening Weakening
Maieh 31,2017
LSD (3 % movement ) F’ (22019, 22019 {143 9% 143 99
EUR (3 % movement ) - 29 (20 03) 1900 {19.00)
(191,111 197) (] 24 99) 124 99
—__muh 7 Rk
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35 Financial risk management {(Continued)

d} Interest risk
The group is exposed primarily to fluctuation in USD interest rates. Interest rate risk on financial debt is managed through interest rate swaps

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows

March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Fixed-rate instruments 6,790.M1 377039
Varinble-rate mstruments 1921641 21,928 16
Tutal borrowings 26,00732 25,698.55

Financial assets classified at amortized cost have fixed inlerest rate. Hence, the group is not subject to interest rate risk on such financial assets.

Cash flow sensitivity ansalysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have

Profhit or loss Equity, nei of tax
100 bp in¢rease 100 bp decrease 100 bp imerease 100 bp decrease
March 31, 2008
VMarble-rate instruments 192,16 (192.16) 125.66 (125.66)
March 31, 2017
Yariable-rate instruments 21928 (21928) 143 39 (143 349)
|
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Contingent Liabilities:

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts {including taken over under Business Transfer Agreement)

Asail Asat

31-Mar-2018 M-Mar-2007

Ineome Tax guthorities 1,078.31 1,044 10
Exeise duty 31.89 ELN )
Pemand of Rs 1552 (out of which Rs. 600 paid) raised by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal West Zonal 15.52 1552

Berich, Mumbai for clearance of imported goods under DEPB scheme (Contravention of the provisions of Section |11 (o} of the
Customs Acr, 1962}

The claims against the Company comprise of pending litigations / proceedings pertaining to demands raised by Excise, Custom, Sales / VAT 1ax and
ather authorities / bodies. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are
required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of 1he respective
proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities

Commitments
Year ended Period ended
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Estimated amount of conlracts remaming to be executed on capital aceount and not provided for (Nel of 1,724,958 647 81
advances of Rs 184 68 lakhs, (March 31, 2017 Rs. 1156 98 lakhs,)
LC's issued in favour of suppliers, but the malerial nol digpatched 2349 153 87
Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Earnings per share
Profit after tax atiributable to equity 3,644.06 1,806.59
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year [B] 10,000 14,000 00
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year [C] 10,000 14,000.00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year [D] 10,000 10,000.00
Basic & Diluted earnings (in rupees) per share of face value Rs 10 [A)/[D] 36,440,60 18,065.90

Transfer Pricing

Transactions with related parties are governed by transfer pricing regulations of the Indian Income-tax Act, 1961 The Company’s international and
domestic transactions with related parties are at arm'’s length as per the independent accountants report for the year ended March 31, 2017. Management
believes that the Company’s international and domestic transactions with related parties post March 2016 continue to be at arm’s length and that the
transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of 1ax expense and that of provision for

Y
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Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) between the Company, Fairchem Speciality Limited and Privi Organics Limited

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company (the Resulting Company) entered into a Scheme of Amrangement {‘the Scheme®) between, Privi
Organics Limited (“POL”} {Demerged Company), Fairchem Speciality Limited (“FSL formerly AdiFinechem Limited) (parent company of the Resulling
Company) and Adi Aromatic Limited (Resulting Company whose name has since been changed to Privi QOrganics [ndia Limited or (POIL)). The Scheme
involved demerger of the Aroma Chemical Business of POL (*Demerged Undertaking”) and transfer to Adi Aromatic Limited (now known asPrivi
Organics India Limited or POIL} which is a 100% subsidiary of FSL, a Company whose equity shares are listed and traded on the BSE Limited and the
National Stock Exchange of india Limited.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and as consideration for the Scheme, FSL shall issue and allot o the equity shareholders of POL, for the transfer of
the Demerged Undertaking, shares in the following proportion

“27 (twenty seven} equity shares of FSL of Rs. 10 each fuily paid up for every 40 (forty) equity shares of POL of Rs. |0/ each fully paid up™;, and

“27 (twenty seven} compulsorily convertible preference shares of FSL of Rs. 10 each fully paid up for every 40 (forty) equity shares of POL of Rs. 10/
each fully paid up”,

The Scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)on February 22, 2017(*Order”), The Scheme became effective on March 14,
2017 when the Order approved by the NCLT was filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Accordingly, the Scheme has been given effect to in
the financial statements with effect from the appointed date of August 1, 2016.

Pursuant to the scheme ,the following assets and liabilities have been divested into the resulting Company from POL at the same values as appearing in
the books of POL on August 1,2016 being the appointed date , adjusted for the adjustments referred to in Note 3

Particulurs Amount in lakhs
Linbilitles
Nop=Cluprent Liahifities
Long-term borrowings 6,379.53
Deferred 1ax liability (Net) 1,100,890
Other long-term liabilities 0.25
lang-term provisions 63575
Cursem Fiohifitivs
Short-term borowanys 20485 22
Trade payables 15,558 03
Othen current liabihities 8,783.81
Short-lerm provisions 1.1382]
Total Liabilities (A) T 54,080.69)
Asgets I —
Ficed Assers (Net) 28,538.06
Investments
-MNon-Current 959 17
-Current 1501
Crrent Assits
-Mon-Current
Laong-term loans and advances (refer nole 31 216202
Cther non current assels 1,450 14
<Current
[nvemaries 21,437.22
Trade receivables 16,341 (4
Cash and bank balance 1,851 81
Shivrt-term loans and advances 20N
45,614.99
————
Total Assets{B) 7512723

I

Net Asgets (B-A) 21,045.54

As mentioned under the Scheme, the excess of the value of assets over the value of liabilities will be treated as general reserve  Accordingly, the net
assets of Rs 21,045.54 lakhs has been transferred to general resecve,

The Order also provides that all assets and liabilities accrued to POL afler the appointed date and prior to the effective date in connection with the
Demerged Underaking shall stand transferred to.and. yested in the Resulting Company with effect from the effective date  Pursuant to the Scheme,
mongy raised in POL towards shares subsoribed by: an existing shareholder, post the appointed date, of Rs 14,528.22 lakhs {net of expenses incurred of
Rs 471.78 lakhs) has been transferred o ‘the Resulting Company with a credit to the general reserve accordingly, Rs. 35,573.76. lakhs has been

transferred (o general reserves (in the gpgregite)
|
h}\r‘
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Year ended Period ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Dividend on Equity shares

Dividend on cquity shares declared and paid during the year

Dividend ol Rs 2500 per share for the period ended March 31,2017 250,00 -

Dividend distribution tax on dividend 50,89 -
300.89 -

Proposed dividend on cquity shares not recognised as liability

Final dividend of Rs 3,750 per share for the year ended 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 Rs 2300 per share) J75.00 250.00

Dividend distribution tax on dividend 77.08 50.89
452.08 300.89

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”") through Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the following new and
amendments (o Ind ASs which the Company has not applied as they are ¢ffective for annual periods beginning on or after Apnil |, 2018.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Ind AS 2] The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates

Ind AS 115~ Revenue from Coniracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 eslablishes a single comprehensive standard for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115
will supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it becomes effective

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue 1o depict the transfer of promised goods or services o cuslomers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition;

Step |- Idenbify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: ldenlify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5 Recognise revenus when (or as) the entity satisfics a performance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligalion is satisfied, i.e when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance cbligation is transferred 1o the customer

The Company has completed its evaluation of the possible impact of Ind AS 115 and will adopt the standard with all related amendments to al! contracts
with customers retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application Under this
transition method, cumulative effect of initially applying IND AS 115 is recognised as an adjustment to the apening bulance of retained camings of the
annual reporiing period The standard is applied retrospectively only 1o contracts that are not completed contracts at the date of initial application. The
Company does not expect the impact of the adoption of the new standard to be material on its retained earnings and to its net income on an ongoing
basis

Ind AS 21 = The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that clude the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The
appendix explaing that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary
prepayment assct or deferred income liability. 1F there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transachion 15 established for each payment
or receipt, The Group is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statemnets

Subsequent event

On Aprif 26, 2018 a major fire broke oul at the Company’s Uit 2 Plant located ut MIDC Mahad  There has been loss o assels comprisimg of
Inventories, Buildings, Plant & Machinery and other Fixed Assels. The Company is not able 1o make a rehable estimate ol the exact amount of loss,
which would be esimated once the surveyors have completed their assessment. The Company is adequately insured and post the assessment, the
Company will file a claim for reimbursement of loss with the insurance Company  Since this is a non-adjusting subsequent evenl. no adjustment has

been made n the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
§
/ —~ w
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45  Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBN’s})

During the period ended March 31,2017, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination notes as defined in the MCA
notification G.S.R 308(E) dated March 31,2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period {rom
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, the denomination wise SBN's and other notes as per the notification given below:

Particulars SBN's* Qiher deaomination Total
notey

Closing cash in hand a3 on November 8, 2016 274,500 11,99,258 1,673,758
Transagtion between 9 November to 30 December '

{+} Withdrawal from Bank - 1,811,830 1,811,830
(-) Permitted Payments - 1,680,908 1,680,908
() Amount deposited in Banks 274,500 - 274,500
Closing cash in hand 29 on December 30, 2H6 - 15,30,180 1,530,180

* For the purpose of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes™ shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the
Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 5.0. 3407(E), dated the 8 November, 20146,

46  Interests in Other Entities
a)  Subsidiaries
The group's subsidiaries at March 31, 2018 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equily

shares that are held direcily by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the group. The
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

Nane of the entity Country of incorporation Ownership interest held by the Groap
March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Privi Bronechnologies Private Limited India 100 1040

Privi organies USA Corporabion USA to0 100

b) Associates

Name of the ontity Accounting Method Carrying value Share in profitf(loas)

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Minar Organics Private Limited Equity acounting .

*Investment in associate company was sold during the year
47  Previous year comparative

These financial stalements have been prepared for the period from | April 2017 1o March 31,2018, whereas the previous period was from 8th July 2016
to March 31,2017 The corresponding figures for the previous year are therefore not comparable with those for the current period.

For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board gf Directors of

Chartered Accourrants Privi Organicy/India Limited
Firm's Registration No: 11623 1'W/W-100024
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